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Management Discussion and Analysis

The board of directors (the “Board”) is pleased to present the annual
results of REXLot Holdings Limited (the “Company”), its subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entities (together, the “Group”) for the financial
year ended 31 December 2009.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

During the year under review, the Group was principally engaged in
lottery system and games development business and distribution and
marketing of lottery products in China.

The China Lottery Market comprises two lotteries, namely, the China
Welfare Lottery and the China Sports Lottery. The Group provides
services to both lotteries.

Lottery Business

The Group’s lottery business can be broadly divided into System
and Games Development Business (“SGDB") and Distribution and
Marketing Business ("DMB").

Turnover of the lottery business for the year increased by 9.52% to
HK$1,260,072,000 (2008: HK$1,150,514,000), accounting for 99%
of the total turnover. Profit before taxation arising from this segment
increased by 8.46% to HK$460,327,000 (2008: HK$424,407,000).

During the year under review, although we see a decline in Sports
Computer Ticket Game (“CTG") business due to the completion of
machine replacement cycle in prior year, the Group’s SGDB Division
continued to deliver solid performance.

The Group's DMB Division, which commenced operation in late 2008,
has demonstrated its strong growth potential in China with the
increased diversification of lottery games and distribution channels.
We believe that there are a lot of opportunities for the Group to
leverage off this distribution platform, especially after the launch of
Single Match Games (“SMG") and our expansion into the Electronic
Lottery Distribution Platform (“ELP") of lottery tickets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRIN (&)

China Lottery Market

In 2009, China’s Lottery Market has continued to record a strong
growth with sales of approximately RMB132.5 billion (2008: RMB106
billion), up 25% year-on-year. Welfare Lottery accounted for about
57% (RMB75.6 billion) of total lottery sales while Sports Lottery
accounted for about 43% (RMB56.9 billion). This underscores the
resilient nature of the lottery industry in China notwithstanding the
financial tsunami which struck the world in the latter half of 2008.

In respect of Welfare Lottery, Welfare CTG accounted for about 86%
of total welfare lottery sales; Welfare Scratch Cards was about 12%
and Video Lottery Terminals (“VLT")/Keno took about 2%.

Welfare CTG sales in 2009 was RMB64.7 billion, up 28% year-on-
year. The changes in rules of game for Powerball made in January
2009, coupled with the launch of new games, had proven to be
instrumental in increasing Welfare CTG sales.

Welfare Scratch Cards sales in 2009 registered a healthy growth of
21% year-on-year to RMB9.3 billion. The increase was primarily due
to the increasing popularities on the higher face value tickets and
the introduction of theme based programs like Shanghai EXPO in late
August 2009.

VLT/Keno sales reached RMB1.6 billion. After obtaining regulatory
approval of launching new games in the country, VLT/Keno sales in
the second half of 2009 regained the momentum of growth when
compared to the same period in 2008.

During the year, Sports CTG accounted for about 73% of total Sports
Lottery sales and Sports Scratch Cards took about 27%.

Sports CTG sales, including SMG, in 2009 increased by 18% vyear-
on-year to approximately RMB41.7 billion. This growth was partially
attributed to the commencement of the pilot testing of SMG in
selected provinces in May 2009.

Sports Scratch Cards sales in 2009 was RMB15.2 billion, up 48%
when compared to 2008.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Core Business Continues to Deliver Solid Earnings and Growth
System and Games Development Business

The Group's SGDB Division is an active participant in the provision of
systems and equipments for both CTG and Scratch Cards products in
China.

Welfare CTG Business

Our Group's Welfare CTG business is principally conducted through
Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd (“Sinodata”), a 84.75%
owned subsidiary of our Group. Sinodata is the leading system
and equipment supplier for the Welfare CTG market. It provides
services to 16 lottery provinces in China. The Group had successfully
maintained its leading market positioning in Welfare CTG segment
with sustainable growth. The changes in rules of game for Powerball
made in January 2009, coupled with the launch of new games, had
proven to be instrumental in increasing Welfare CTG sales. In 2009,
Welfare CTG registered a strong growth of approximately 28% year-

on-year.

During the year under review, the Group has stayed focused on the
development of new games and the improvement of existing games
including high frequency games for the CTG and mobile platform.

Welfare Instant Lottery (Scratch Cards) Business

Our Group's Welfare Instant Lottery tickets validation business is
conducted through our 50%-owned Beijing Guard Libang Technology
Co Ltd (“Guard Libang”), which is the exclusive system and
equipment supplier of Welfare Scratch Cards validation and system
implementation in China. Guard Libang is a 50:50 joint venture with

Scientific Games Corporation (“Scientific Games”).

Our strategic partnership with Scientific Games, the world’s leading
instant lottery system and validation company, enables us to bring its
expertise and technology know-how to the Scratch Cards market in
China.

Welfare Scratch Cards sales in 2009 registered a healthy growth of
21% year-on-year. We expect the sales growth trends in China to
continue with the increasing popularities on the higher face value
tickets and the introduction of theme based programs like Shanghai
EXPO.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRIN (&)

Our Group has successfully entered into the Chinese Welfare Scratch
Cards printing business in November 2008 through a cooperative
venture with Shijiazhuang Offset Printing House. As one of three
entities authorized to print for the Welfare Scratch Cards programs,
the Group's printing facilities is located at Shijiazhuang, the Provincial

Capital of Hebei Province.

Since our participation in the printing business, the Group was able
to increase its printing capacity and efficiency. During the year under
review, the existing plant printed around 1 billion tickets and gained
respectable market share.

Sports CTG Business

Our Group's Sports CTG business involved the sales of CTG machines
to the Provincial Sports Lottery Centres across China. However, as the
peak of the replacement cycle for Sports CTG machines has passed,
this business has seen signs of slowing during the year under review.
As a step to diversify the Group’s product range, the Group also
devotes its resources to the development of new games especially
high frequency games running on CTG based or electronic platforms
and the deployment of system and equipment in support of the SMG
roll out in China. We believe that these areas present solid business
opportunities to the Group.

New Business Poised for Growth

Distribution and Marketing Business

The Group's DMB Division is a relatively new business unit of the
Group and after a great start in late 2008 with the cooperation model
of Point-of-Sales (“POS") distribution of lottery tickets in China. Our
DMB Division has now extended its operation into the electronic
distribution of lottery tickets through the mobile network in China.
We believe that there are a lot of opportunities for the Group and
especially our DMB Division to participate in and contribute to the
development of the China Lottery Market in the longer term.

Cooperation Distribution Business

The Group has focused on the cooperative model for the distribution
of lottery tickets as oppose to the direct sales model. Under the
cooperative model, we focus on with our distribution channel
partners, entities and organizations that already had a widely
diversified and recognized retail network. Our partners include China
Post, PetroChina, Sinopec, China Resources, other major supermarket
and convenient store chains. Building on the successful establishment
of our extensive distribution network spanning across China at prime
locations with high traffic and minimum operating cost, the Group
has fortified its leading position in the cooperative distribution
channel in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

During the year under review, the Group has continued its efforts
in consolidating its leading position as a major distributor of lottery
tickets in China. Looking ahead into 2010, we intend to continue our
efforts in this area and to maintain our leading edge in the market.

With the advent of the 3G mobile phones in China and the
growing importance of the distribution business for the Group, the
management of the Group has started to consolidate the physical
and paperless distribution of lottery tickets to form a comprehensive
distribution platform for the lottery market in China.

Going forward, we see the different ways of lottery tickets
distributions will complement each other and help further advance
the distribution of lottery tickets for the good causes in China.

Single Match Games Business

In early May 2009, the China Sports Lottery Administration Centre
("CSLC") launched SMG in selected provinces like Shandong and
Liaoning. Subsequent to the initial pilot testing, CSLC plans to roll out
SMG across the country.

In supporting the launch of SMG in China, the Group has played an
active role in participating in the distribution of SMG tickets through
an increasing number of dedicated franchised shops for SMG and

supplying the equipment for the launch of SMG.

SMG is expected to develop into a major segment of lottery games
in China and our Group will continue its efforts in developing and
widening its network for the distribution of SMG in China. As at end
of the financial year, our Group already has presence in 6 provinces
which provinces accounted for almost 30% of Sports Lottery tickets
sales in 2009.

Mobile Lottery Business and the Electronic Lottery Platform

Our Group recognizes the importance of new technologies in the
shaping and development of the China Lottery Market. In this regard,
our Group is a forerunner in the introduction of new technologies
and systems for the smooth and reliable development of lottery
equipments and risk management systems and distribution channels
in China. During the financial year under review, and following
closely the regulatory directions of the supervising authorities, our
Group commenced cautiously the development of a comprehensive
electronic distribution platform incorporating the use of new and
leading technologies in formulating a paperless lottery platform
utilizing modern distribution channels like cooperating distribution
methods and mobile based channels (the “ELP").
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Potentially, ELP can cover the mobile, telephone and web based
lottery platforms. We are prepared to assist in such launch depending
on the regulatory developments in this regard.

In strict adherence to the regulatory guidelines established by the
supervising authorities, we have started our mobile based lottery

distribution operation in 2009.

Currently, the Group has entered into 6 contracts with responsible
provincial lottery centres for the launching of lottery distribution
platforms in the respective provinces and we have already launched in
3 of them. We have accumulated a substantial customer base in the
provinces that we operate and expect the number of users to increase
over time upon our expansion into different provinces and deepening
our penetration into existing provinces. China Mobile is our major roll
out partner for the mobile lottery operation.

Financial Business

Turnover of the Group's financial services decreased by 47% to
HK$11,997,000 (2008: HK$22,486,000) and recorded segment
loss of HK$774,000 (2008: HK$73,726,000). During the year under
review, the Group has successfully reduced its exposure to its non-
core financial business and we will continue to look for opportunities
in releasing further resources from this business segment to the
lottery business segment of the Group with a view to reduce our
non-core business exposures and focus on our lottery business as such
opportunities arises.

Outlook

The introduction of the first national regulation on lottery for China
in 2009 aims to codify the existing regulating policies and practices.
Against this backdrop, the China Lottery Market is expected to grow
in a regulated and healthy environment.

2009 is a milestone year for the Group. We have laid a solid
foundation for future developments, innovations and breakthroughs
in the China lottery industry. We have continued to make encouraging
progress and record healthy revenue growth.

We are, in particular, excited by our Group’s positioning and potential
in three new segments: a rapidly expanding lottery distribution
platform spanning across China at prime locations; the launch
of SMG; and the roll out of ELP in China. We believe these new
businesses will bring a lot of synergies to our existing SGDB business.

Building on our core lottery business, new growth drivers are taking
shape at the Group. These new businesses have huge growth

potential and good returns to deliver in the longer term.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Well Positioned for Growth on Solid Fundamentals

As a major participant in China's lottery industry, we are confident
and optimistic about the future prospects of our Group. We believe
that the Welfare and Sports Lotteries in China will continue to make
significant contributions for the good causes which benefit the
general public in China. The Group will also continue its efforts in
the furthering of such good causes in China through the careful and
diligent execution of its planned strategies.

In addition to our SGDB business which provides stable recurrent
income and solid growth fundamentals, the Group's new initiatives in
different new business segments also present new opportunities for

us to excel.

The forthcoming South Africa World Cup will be another catalyst for
growth in SMG sales in the near term. According to market estimates,
it's widely believed that the potential of SMG is enormous in China.
When the market for SMG matures over the course of the next couple
of years, SMG may, based on those estimations, become the single
largest games category of all lottery products in China by lottery size
and revenue generation. As a major participant in the SMG market
both in terms of system and equipment provisioning and distribution
of SMG tickets in China through both the physical stores and ELP, we
are optimistic that SMG may become a major growth driver for the

Group.

In tandem with the launch of SMG, high frequency games on CTG
and electronic platforms for both the Welfare and Sports Lotteries
have also been extensively launched in China. During the year under
review, we have focused on capturing these invaluable opportunities

through our strong research and development capabilities.

The popularity of SMG and high frequency games has revolutionized
the distribution channels for lottery tickets. We believe that ELP will
be instrumental in supporting the developments of these new games

in the country.

Conceivably, we believe that ELP, which may include the mobile,
telephone and web when regulation permits, will mark a new era for
a convenient and cost-effective distribution channel of lottery tickets
in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRIN (&)

In the year ahead, we expect Welfare CTG sales to maintain a prudent
growth while Welfare Scratch Cards sales to see a relatively stable
growth, with increase in price points and launch of more theme based
programs like the Shanghai EXPO. Furthermore, in respect of the
Group's Welfare Scratch Cards printing business, we aim to increase
the printing capacity of the plant by bringing in additional advanced
printing press into China. The upgrade is expected to complete in
2010.

Looking ahead, the Group is steadfast in its strategy to invest in
the future. While reinvesting in the business to pave our way for a
sustainable growth, we also pursue new opportunities and possible
expansion strategies through acquisitions. With strong operating
free cashflow and a practically ungeared balance sheet, we believe
that our developments in new business segments will be funded by
our internal resources and we also have adequate working capital to
achieve our business objectives, with no need to raise funds.

Keeping abreast of the favourable business environment and being
market-oriented, we will timely adjust strategies to be conducive
to its development and apply flexible and proactive marketing and
investment strategies to maximize shareholder value.

As always, our goal is to strengthen our revenue base and
profitability, which in turn, provides long term and stable returns to
our loyal and supportive shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Result

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group recorded
a turnover of HK$1,272,069,000 (2008: HK$1,173,000,000),
representing an increase of 8.45% over that of the last year. The
increase was mainly attributable to the Group's lottery business
in China which achieved a turnover of HK$1,260,072,000 (2008:
HK$1,150,514,000).

Profit attributable to equity holders for the year was HK$424,581,000
(2008: HK$267,641,000). The earnings per share was 5.66 cents
(2008: 3.68 cents). Fully diluted earnings per share was 5.63 cents
(2008: 3.66 cents).

The Board recommended a final dividend of 0.43 HK cent per share.
Together with the maiden interim dividend of 0.18 HK cent per share,
the Group's total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009
amounts to 0.61 HK cent per share (2008: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Funding

At 31 December 2009, the Group's total equity amounted to
HK$3,446,671,000 as compared to HK$3,060,555,000 at the end of
the previous year.

At 31 December 2009, the Group had cash reserves of approximately
HK$353,158,000 (2008: HK$244,043,000), which included
approximately HK$27,029,000 (2008: HK$18,419,000) of clients’
funds that were kept in designated segregated bank accounts.

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2009 was 2.33% (2008:
0.46%). The gearing ratio was derived by dividing the aggregate of
bank and other borrowings by the amount of shareholders’ equity.
The liquidity ratio of the Group, represented by a ratio between
current assets over current liabilities, was 601% (2008: 633%).

The Group had outstanding bank and other borrowings as at 31
December 2009 of HK$61,657,000 and HK$18,533,000 respectively
(2008: HK$14,158,000 and Nil respectively). The borrowings were
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars and interest bearing
at prevailing commercial lending rates. The Group's land and building
were pledged to secure the bank borrowings. We expect that all these
borrowings will be repaid by internal generated funds.

Taking into account the financial resources available to the Group
including internally generated funds and available banking facilities,
the Group has sufficient working capital to meet its present
requirements.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s land and building with
total market value of approximately HK$48,864,000 (2008:
HK$47,727,000) and the Group's bank deposits of HK$16,875,000
(2008: Nil) were pledged to banks to secure the bank borrowings
granted to the Group. At 31 December 2008, the Group's
listed investment belonging to clients with total market value of
approximately HK$2,857,000 (2009: Nil) were pledged to banks to
secure the bank borrowings granted to the Group.

Share Capital
194,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each were issued and allotted
during the year upon exercise of share options granted by the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the Company's
capital structure during the year ended 31 December 2009.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRIN (&)

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rate Risk and

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’'s assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated either in Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi. The Group
did not enter into any foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge
against exchange rates fluctuations. Foreign exchange risk arising
from the normal course of operations is considered to be minimal and
the management will closely monitor the fluctuation in the currency
and take appropriate actions when condition arises.

In terms of the interest rate risk exposures, the Group does not have
any significant interest rate risk as both the borrowings of the Group

and the interest rates currently remain at low levels.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries
The Group had no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2009.

Human Resources
As at 31 December 2009, the Group had 1,490 employees.

The Group remunerated its employee mainly based on the individual's
performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonus and share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well as
individual performance.

The Group will continue to emphasise on staff training and total
quality management to better prepare its staff for the upcoming

changes and challenges in the market and industry.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere thanks to
all our shareholders, business partners and professional advisors for
their support throughout the year, and to our management and staff

for their ongoing dedication to the Group.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chan How Chung, Victor
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 April 2010
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN How Chung, Victor, aged 49, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 4 July 2002. Mr Chan is responsible
for the strategic development and overall operations of the Group.
He holds a LLB degree and is a professionally qualified accountant.
He has over 25 years of experience in corporate restructurings and
reorganizations, mergers and acquisitions, primary and secondary
capital raisings, wealth management and corporate finance.

BOO Chun Lon, aged 45, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 14 September 2004 and is responsible for the
development of the Group. He holds a bachelor degree of arts from
the University of Winnipeg in Canada. Prior to joining the Company,
he has been the marketing manager of Great Tone Limited, an

international manufacturing company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

YUEN Wai Ho, aged 50, obtained a master in business administration
from the University of Bath in England in 1988. Mr Yuen is a
fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
& Administrators. Mr Yuen has more than 25 years of experience
in auditing and commercial fields, 10 of which were working in
multinational companies. He is currently a partner of a firm of
certified public accountants. Mr Yuen also served as an independent
non-executive director of Zhuguang Holdings Group Company Limited
(formerly known as Nam Fong International Holdings Limited), a listed
company in Hong Kong, from 14 September 2007 to 28 October
2009.

CHOW Siu Ngor, aged 54, is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. Mr
Chow graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1981
with an honors degree in Social Science. He then obtained an honors
degree in Laws from the University of Birmingham in England in 1987.
Mr Chow was admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong
Kong in 1990 and has been in private practice since then. Currently,
Mr Chow is a Partner of King & Wood, Solicitors. Mr Chow also serves
as an independent non-executive director of CCT Tech International
Limited and a non-executive director of China Gamma Group Limited,
both are listed companies in Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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LEE Ka Lun, aged 55, is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in UK. Mr Lee has over 25 years
experience in banking and auditing. He had been the Deputy Chief
Executive of Lloyds TSB Bank plc, Hong Kong Branch and Regional
Director — Finance and Operation of Lloyds TSB's operations in Asia
for over 15 years and has extensive experience on corporate banking,
private banking, treasury, operations, IT developments and general
management. Mr Lee also serves as an independent non-executive
director of three other listed companies in Hong Kong namely Denway
Motors Limited, Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited and
Yuexiu Property Company Limited (formerly known as Guangzhou

Investment Company Limited).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WOO Ming Wah, aged 39, is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group. Mr Woo is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr Woo has over 13 years of

experience in the field of auditing and financial management.

NG Yuen Yee, aged 40, is the Company Secretary of the Company.
Ms Ng is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. She has over 17 years of experience in the field

of company secretaryship.

YAU Sheung Nei, aged 37, is the Director — Corporate Development
and Investor Relations of the Group. Ms Yau has over 14 years of
experience in the field of investor relations and equity research. Prior
to joining the Group, she had worked for a number of Hong Kong-

listed red chip companies and a global asset management company.
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ZHANG Jing, aged 55, is the President and Chief Operating Officer
(Lottery Operation) and the Chief Representative (Beijing Office).
Mr Zhang graduated from Yunnan University and has over 30 years
experience in governmental affairs and corporate management. He
has been involved in the modernization of lottery in China since
2003 and later involved in the development of lottery business of the

Group.

ZHANG Beiguang, aged 40, is the Executive Vice President (Lottery
Operation and Overseas Markets). Mr Zhang graduated from the
Peking University with a bachelor degree of arts. He has over 15 years

experience in strategic development and management.

WANG Xiangbo, aged 48, is the general manager of Beijing Guard
Libang Technology Co Ltd (“Guard Libang”). Mr Wang graduated
from the Hunan University with a master degree in Business
Administration. Prior to joining Guard Libang, he was appointed as
vice president of China Southern Airlines Power Machinery Company
in 1993 and was responsible for sales. He specialized in large scale
operation management and international venture, especially in
nationwide marketing management. He was the general manager of
Tianjin Nankai Co Ltd, a listed company in China between 2000 to
2003. Mr Wang joined Guard Libang since 2004.

ZHAO Xuejun, aged 44, was appointed as a director and general
manager of Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd (“Sinodata”)
and is responsible for the overall operational management of
Sinodata. Mr Zhao holds a M.Sc. and a Ph.D degree of photoelectric
equipment and mechanical engineering from Chongqing University.
He joined Sinodata in 1998 and has been engaged in the research
and development and project management work on lottery system
solutions, and equipment as well as lottery games for long time.
He has led the planning and implementation of issuance and
administration system of Computer Ticket Games in welfare lottery
for 16 provinces in China and has extensive experience in lottery

development strategy, technology R&D and corporate management.
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Management for Lottery Business (continued)
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ZHU Yi, aged 42, is the deputy general manager of Shenzhen
Sinodata Technology Co Ltd and is in charge of the marketing
functions. He graduated from Chongging University with a bachelor
degree of Electrical Engineering. Since 1993, Mr Zhu has been
working in the lottery industry of China. He has long been engaged
in the research and development of the lottery market, and is
responsible for the sales and marketing of the Computer Ticket
Games project of more than ten provinces in China. He has extensive
experience and has outstanding achievements in anticipating the
development trend of the lottery industry, capturing marketing
opportunities and market operation.

LI Xue Jun, aged 37, is the deputy general manager of Shenzhen
Sinodata Technology Co Ltd, and is in charge of technical matters.
He graduated from Chongging University in the department of
photoelectric equipment and mechanical engineering with a master
degree in Engineering. Mr Li has been responsible for the planning
and development of the lottery issue and management system. He
has completed the implementation of the technological solutions
and engineering tasks of the Computer Ticket Games issue and
management system in 16 provinces in China, with which he was
awarded the prize of "Excellent New Product” of the Guangdong
Province and a number of national patents. With extensive experience
in the planning of total lottery solutions and the development and
implementation of relevant products, he has exceptional insights
into and practical experience of the application of relevant lottery
technologies and their development prospects.

JIANG Libin, aged 37, is the general manager of Guangzhou
Latech Technology Co Ltd (“Guangzhou Latech”). Mr Jiang joined
Guangzhou Latech since 2000 and has extensive experience in
mechanical and electronic engineering research and related business
operations. He graduated from the faculty of power control in Beijing
University of Aeronautics & Astronautics.

QIAO Jin, aged 41, is the general manager of Shenzhen Kingsail
Software Tech Co Ltd. Mr Qiao graduated from Chongging
University and holds a M.Sc. degree from the Department of
Applied Mathematics and a Ph.D degree from the School of
Optoelectronic Engineering. He has over 10 years of experience in
the field of information technology and engineering, specializing in

comprehensive information system application.

KRB 425 REERINTBELBERMAERRFE
HER NDERAMSTIE-REXEREEAZER
IRF BIRBLEN -RELE-NAN=FE—H
EPBEYRTEIE RAREXETISOHEMA
BRI AE2ETHEEMEBNCEERNTIBT
I HERTERRER THEESILENEE
EBESENKERME MARR-

FEEL 375 WREEFRYITELBBERMER AR
BliagE DERRARMIF - REXNEEREN
BEREESAEME BEIZ2BLT 2L -FThE—H
BERREOREBRAGORINAELE AES
BT 2B6MEE BHEMNY REITE R RR NN
TERTRERTIF CESEREEFTERER
ZIHERERN - B Z AR ZRBMNBRE D
RELEREANEENER X RHABRMNE
ANZERAISEABEINERNERLR -

EVE 375 REMNTEEHRMEBRAF ([EM
LEHNBREE - ZXAER_ZSTTFRNAE
MESH HABZOEM EFTREFRELRERN
EBEFLER REERNIERMEMRKEE 1
Zo

BE ME KRINT WA XM AR QA H AL
B-BRALREREEAE BEERUERELE
UENETRBRBLIEM -RAEATFEHRER
MEEIBZER ERGAEERRER-

Annual Report 2009 =ZBAFEFH



REXLot Holdings Limited {12 IZRARA T

Management for Lottery Business (continued)

TSANG Lung Fai, aged 46, the Chief Executive Officer of Beijing
Xinan Sino-lottery Technology Co Ltd and is responsible for the
overall management of the printing of lottery tickets. Mr Tsang holds
a master degree in Business Administration from Massey University
in New Zealand. He has worked in C & C Security Printing Company
Limited for around 20 years and was experienced in security printing.
He was formerly the general manager of Hong Kong and Dongguan
plants of RR Donnelley & Sons Printing Limited.

ZHONG Wu, aged 47, is the Chief Operating Officer of Beijing Xinan
Sino-lottery Technology Co Ltd and is responsible for the overall
operation of the printing of lottery tickets. Mr Zhong graduated
from Beijing University of Aeronautics & Astronautics — School of
Economics and Management, with a master degree of business
administration. He has over 10 years of experience in product
development and logistic management and business planning.

TUNG Wai Ching, aged 45, is the general manager of Beijing
Lohowin Marketing Co Ltd and is responsible for the overall
management of the sales of lottery tickets. Mr Tung holds a
master degree in Business Administration from the The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He has over 10 years of experience in sales
marketing and management and has thorough understanding to the
Chinese market.

XING Honghai, aged 46, is the general manager of Caitong
Tiancheng (Beijing) Tech Co Ltd. Mr Xing graduated from the
Department of Mathematics of Inner Mongolia Normal University. He
joined the Group since 2009.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEEBRSE

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code"”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize
a quality board of directors, sound internal control, principles and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the Company.
The Company has complied with the Code throughout the accounting
period covered by this report except in certain circumstances which
are provided and discussed in the latter part of this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) are collectively
responsible for the oversight of the management of business and
affairs of the Group of the best interest of the shareholders of the
Company. The Board currently comprises a total of five Directors,
with two Executive Directors namely Mr Chan How Chung, Victor and
Mr Boo Chun Lon and three Independent Non-executive Directors
namely Mr Yuen Wai Ho, Mr Chow Siu Ngor and Mr Lee Ka Lun. The
biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 15 to 16.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are financially independent
from the Group. The Company confirmed with all Independent Non-
executive Directors as to their independence with reference to the
factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is collectively responsible for the formulating of the
Group’s overall strategy, reviewing and monitoring the business
performance of the Group, preparing and approving financial
statements, recommendation of the Directors’ appointment or re-
appointment, considering and approving material contracts and
transactions as well as other significant policy and financial matters.
The Board also gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to
the management for the day-to-day operation and administration
functions of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

There were four board meetings held for the year ended 31 December
2009. The following was an attendance record of the board meetings
held by the Board during the year:

Executive Directors HITEE

Chan How Chung, Victor PR 2 B2

Boo Chun Lon AR U BE
Independent Non-executive Directors BB TEFE
Yuen Wai Ho b )& =

Chow Siu Ngor PN E

Lee Ka Lun EPN

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company does not at present have a Chairman nor a Chief
Executive Officer. Nevertheless, the main duties and responsibilities
of a Chairman and a Chief Executive Officer are currently held
by separate individuals with written guidelines for the division of
responsibilities with a view to maintain an effective segregation of
duties between the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group's business and operations.

The Company will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group's
corporate governance structure and consider the appointment of a
Chairman of the Board and a Chief Executive Officer if candidates
with suitable leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be
identified within or outside the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 September
2005. It currently consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company namely Mr Yuen Wai Ho, Mr Chow Siu
Ngor (as Chairman) and Mr Lee Ka Lun.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are:

1. To make recommendations to the board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior

management;

2. To have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior

management;
3. To review and approve performance-based remuneration by

reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;
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4. To review and approve the compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management in connection with any loss or

termination of their office;

5. To review and approve compensation arrangements relating to

dismissal or removal of Directors; and

6. To ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

There was one meeting held for the year ended 31 December
2009. The following was an attendance record of the remuneration
committee meeting held by the Remuneration Committee during the
year:

Remuneration Committee Members FWNZE S8

Yuen Wai Ho B 1& 5%
Chow Siu Ngor NE
Lee Ka Lun TR

The remuneration packages of the Board for the year ended 31
December 2009 had been reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board by taking into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment,
responsibility, market conditions elsewhere in the Group and

desirability of performance-based remuneration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 28 September 2000. It
currently consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company namely Mr Yuen Wai Ho (as Chairman), Mr Chow Siu Ngor
and Mr Lee Ka Lun.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

1. To review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the

Group; and

2. To review the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

There were two Audit Committee meetings held for the year ended
31 December 2009. The following was an attendance record of the
Audit Committee meetings held during the year:

Audit Committee Members EREZEEME
Yuen Wai Ho S
Chow Siu Ngor NS
Lee Ka Lun EX N

The Audit Committee reviewed the independence and objectivity of
the external auditor, the scope of audit services and related audit fees
payable to the external auditor for the Board’s approval. The Audit
Committee met and discussed with the external auditor on their audit
strategy and assessment of the sufficiency of the internal control of
the Company.

The Audit Committee recommends the re-appointment of Ting
Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising), as the
Group's external auditor for 2010 and that the resolution shall be put
forth for the shareholders of the Company to consider and approve at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year the remuneration paid to the Company’s external
auditor, Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants
(Practising), for statutory audit and other services were approximately
HK$1,800,000 and HK$385,000 respectively. The non-statutory audit
services mainly consist of due diligent review.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not formed Nomination Committee. According
to the bye-laws of the Company (”Bye-laws"”), the Company may
from time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any
person to be a Director to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board. The Board also has the power to appoint any person to
be a Director to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
and such appointment shall be subject to shareholders’ approval in

general meeting.
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DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company has adopted
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS

None of the Directors is aware of any information which would
reasonably indicate that the Company is not, or was not, throughout
the year, in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, except that Code Provision A.4.1 requires that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. Currently the Independent Non-executive Directors are not
appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation
at the Company’s annual general meeting as specified in the Bye-
laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2009, the Directors have adopted
suitable accounting polices which are pertinent to its operations and
relevant to the financial statements, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable, and have prepared the financial
statements on the going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements and
those for the auditors to the shareholders are set out on page 36.

INTERNAL CONTROL

To protect its assets and to ensure the accuracy and reliability of the
financial information that the Company employs in its business or
releases to the public, the Company conducts regular reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group's internal controls. The scope of these
reviews includes, among others, finance, operations, regulation

compliance and risk management.
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The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities are principally engaged in (i)
lottery system and games design business; distribution and marketing
of lottery products; and (ii) financial business.

JOINT VENTURE AND SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s joint venture and principal subsidiaries

are set out in notes 23 and 50 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 and
the state of the Group's affairs as at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 38 to 147.

The Board declared an interim dividend of 0.18 HK cent per share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2009 which were paid on 30
October 2009. The Directors recommended, subject to the approval
of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the
payment of a final dividend of 0.43 HK cent per share in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2009 payable on Tuesday, 13 July
2010 to shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the
Company’s register of members at the close of business on Tuesday,
29 June 2010.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
28 June 2010 to Tuesday, 29 June 2010, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Friday, 25 June 2010.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the

year are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are
set out on pages 121 to 124.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group made
approximately 25% of its entire sales to five largest customers
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 6%. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 24% of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 9%.

None of the Directors, or any of their associates or any other
shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and five
largest suppliers during the year.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

As announced by the Company on 22 December 2008, the
Board proposed that the name of the Company be changed from
"REXCAPITAL Financial Holdings Limited” to “REXLot Holdings
Limited” and the adoption of the Chinese name “#f 3 ¥ 2 i%
B AA" as secondary name of the Company to replace the
Chinese name " ZRE&mERER A A"
identification purpose only) (the “Change of Company Name”). The

(which was adopted for

special resolution relating to the Change of Company Name was duly
passed by the shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 30 January 2009. Upon the approval by the Registrar
of Companies in Bermuda on the Change of Company Name having
been obtained, the Change of Company Name has become effective
on 30 January 2009. The stock short names for trading in the shares
of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) have been changed from “REX FINANCIAL H” to
“REXLOT HOLDINGS" in English and from “fZ=&&L" to “flZ=h ¥ i%
%" in Chinese with effect from 9 March 2009.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors
Chan How Chung, Victor
Boo Chun Lon

Independent Non-executive Directors
Yuen Wai Ho

Chow Siu Ngor

Lee Ka Lun

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, Mr Chan How Chung,
Victor and Mr Chow Siu Ngor shall respectively retire and are eligible
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr Chan
and Mr Chow offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election and re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract, which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Details of the Directors’ interests in contracts are set out in note 47 to
the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts of significance to which
the Company, its holding companies, its fellow subsidiaries or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Annual Report 2009 =ZEAFFH

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEeHsE (&)

BEx
RABREERBEARERY E=WT:

BITES
BRE
N3

BYFHTES
i@ =
FNE

RIBEARAAEG REBEERBNERESD
AMENBERMZERBFARG LRERERSE R
SEREEEE - REERBEEMBEANSERZ
BRERBFEREG LBEEEF-

ESNBRESLN

BRENREHZBREFAS LERETZEETHE
BEARB K EAEFIMNE AR L AELEEE (—R
EEBERI) TR —FAKEZRERRE A
#e

EEfhenEs
EEMEANERZ FIERNMIERRME47 -

B EXCPIREEE N ARR] - HER AR - HE & B
JB B S A M B 1 B F R B SR B R (AR B
Bl BB EMNSEERAEARAZERAN-

27



28

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEeHE (&)

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives and their associates in the shares of
the Company as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO") or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (“Shares”)
in the Company
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%E&EE THRAB 2R
RIZZEAF+-ZA=Z+—H EEREEBTHAE

&fﬁi—rz fEALTRAR TZHxT’ﬁ¢T§E*ﬁ$ETF YN
BRI ([EHREGRA])FI26BRHER
TﬁﬁZ%ﬂ%LZE&* FKR  HRFFETAIA

HEARRA 6?IﬁﬁZT§E‘EiFﬁDT

REQABDEREENEBTEER (RO 2HFR

Number of Percentage of
Name of Director Shares held Nature of interest issued share capital
BEEpA RO HE B HEBRTRABD
Chan How Chung, Victor 1,198,805,635 Interest of a controlled corporation 15.79%

PR 2 18 (Note)

(B1iz)

Note: These shares are held by Kingly Profits Corporation as beneficial owner.
Kingly Profits Corporation is wholly owned by Smart Ease Corporation,
which in turn, is wholly owned by Mr Chan How Chung, Victor.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of the
Directors or chief executives, nor their associates, had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

IR R R

Wt ZER 5 BKingly Profits CorporationfE & & &
B AFFE ° Kingly Profits CorporationggSmart Ease
Corporation® & # % - M Smart Ease Corporation 8l
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SHARE OPTIONS

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 22 November 2002 (the
“Scheme").

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to executives and employees of the Group and other persons
who have make a contribution to the Group as incentives and/or
rewards for their contributions to the Company or its subsidiaries.

According to the Scheme, the Board may grant options to the eligible
participants as defined in the Scheme to subscribe for such number
of shares as the Board may determine. Options granted should be
accepted within 30 days from the date of offer. Upon acceptance of
the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of options shall be determined by the Board, save
that such price will not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (b) the average
of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company on the date of approval and
adoption of the Scheme provided that the Company may at any time
seek approval from its shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders in
general meeting where such limit is refreshed. Options previously
granted under any share option schemes of the Company (including
those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such
schemes or exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit as refreshed.
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The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to and including the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or Independent Non-executive
Directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company's issued share capital on
the date of grant or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
options can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. There is no general requirement that an option must be held
for any minimum period before it can be exercised. The Scheme will
expire on 22 November 2012.

At 31 December 2009, no Director had any interests in options to
subscribe for shares of the Company. During the year ended 31
December 2009, 294,000,000 number of share options were granted
under the Scheme. The closing prices of the Shares on 7 December
2009, being the trading date immediately before the date of offer
to grant of such options was HK$0.82. The total number of Shares
available for issue upon exercise of the options outstanding under the
Scheme was 332,500,000 Shares (representing 4.32% of the Shares
in issue as at the date of this report).

The fair value of options granted during the year as determined by
an independent third party valuer using a Black-Scholes pricing model
was approximately HK$7,951,205. Key assumptions used in the
valuation of the options granted on 16 December 2009 include an
expected volatility of share price of 10.159% to 43.56% per annum,
a risk-free rate of interest of 0.04% to 0.08% per annum on the date
of grant. The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of

the Company’s share price over the previous year.

REXLot Holdings Limited f1Z= PR AR AT

REBEELREERLBREBSBHZATMNI2ZERN B
TESEER2EATREBZTERAR AR HA
BRETIERZ2ERE (RERTE DEEEE
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BRBARHIEREEAZEETROZ1% WAE
ZRENBULIFERTEESE L BEARR R NE L B
ZBEITRARZ0.1%3 EEHE5,000,000% T2
BEAE - BIZBE SCAE A A AR R B ©

BRETFEHASREFG2EET EREBERER
HBFT10FET A /THEERE ARAWEBREITE
AN AREERE ZREBHR -Zitg R =_—=
Ft+—AZ=+=BEm-

REZTENF+ZA=+—H EFUETMARE
ARRRMOBREEZ REZTE CHE=-ZT
ZNF+ZA=+—HB1EFE " 294,000,000 & iz
EERL -BHR-_ZEAF+ZALE AEER
P EEREZ BN SAZHBMER0.82B T -
RARZ AT & W R I T R B AR 1T - Al BT
i% 15 42 £ 5332,500,0000% (HHE R AHE A HE %
TRMDEA.32% ) °

FRNEERLBRENAAEHBIE = HHEEMRA
MHR—&FBRREEELITE A#K7,951,205%8 T °
RZZETAF+_A+B CRHERENGHER
AN EZRERESFREBTEEERI0.159%FE
43.56%  FFE AR RS I B BREY S BB 5 F 2 &£ 0.04 %
Z0.08% ° AT E B IR AN QR & F IR & 520K &)
MEE -
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The movements in share options granted under the Scheme during

the year are shown below:

Number of options

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEeHsE (&)

RAFEARZAEMRHBREZEBWT

BREHE
Transferred  Transferred
from other to other Date of
At Granted category category Exercised Lapsed At offer Exercise
Category of 1 January during during during during during 31 December to grant price per Exercisable
participant 2009 the period the year theyear  theperiod  the period 2009 options Share period
RZBENE
RZBENE FrER FRER TR BRE
SEALER -B-8H BREE  BHMEEN  EE4ER BRfTE BREH =t+-H REBH SROEE &S
(HKS)
(1)
Employees 36,000,000 - - - - (36,000,000 - 06/7/2006 0.295 13/7/2006 -
E8 12/7/2009
36,000,000 - - (20,000,000) - - 16,000,000 20/6/2007 0.79 9/7/2007 -
(Note 1) 8/7/2010
(Hi1)
10,000,000 - - - - - 10,000,000 25/712007 1.13 8/8/2007 -
7/8/2010
159,000,000 - - (10,000,000) (144,000,000) - 5,000,000  14/10/2008 0.30 31/10/2008 -
(Note 1) (Note 2) 3071072011
(Hit1) (Hit2)
- 192,000,000 - - (9,500,000 - 182,500,000  08/12/2009 0.90 16/12/2009 -
(Note 3) 07/12/12012
(H3t3)
Other eligible - - 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000 20/6/2007 0.79 9/7/2007 -
participants (Note 1) 8/7/2010
B’ (Brt1)
SEANT 5,000,000 - - - - - 5,000,000 251712007 113 8/8/2007 -
7/8/2010
40,000,000 - 10,000,000 - (50,000,000) - - 14/10/2008 0.30 31/10/2008 -
(Note 1) (Note 2) 30/10/2011
(Bi1) (Hit2)
- 102,000,000 - - (8,000,000 - 94,000,000  08/12/2009 0.90 16/12/2009 -
(Note 3) 0711212012
(Hit3)
Total % 286,000,000 294,000,000 30,000,000  (30,000,000) (211,500,000) (36,000,000) 332,500,000
Notes: (1) Such share options were re-classified from the category of Brat: (1) BREBLEATHBUESE ZSERENSE
“Employees” to “Other eligible participants” during the year as a NEEE] —BEF2EE[HMAERBEA
result of the change of title of the relevant participant. +]e
(2) The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately (2) ZEBRERITEZBAT KRG 2 NETFHKT

@3)

before the date on which the options were exercised was

HK$0.548.

The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately
before the date on which the options were exercised was HK$0.88.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEeHE (&)

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, its fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules, details of the interests
held by the Directors in businesses that are considered to compete or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group, are disclosed as follows:

Name of company

DAEEH

REXLot Holdings Limited f1Z= AP IR AR AT

BEROSES 22
B EXPEEEN A2R - HERAR HRAEE
MBARSEEAMNEARRFATMRREGEESE
EAZHE BEEEETAEBALRFAREAEMR
AlZ Bt B A -

EENBmEMERP 2 ES
RIBEETARRNES.10(2)16  E=ATHEAR M EL ok Al g £
AEEEBEERLRERF CEBRAFBEREN
T~

Competing business

BEMER

RPI Finance Limited (“RPI")
HEMBEERAR ([HRHE])

D & M Finance Limited ("D&M")

TKR Finance Limited (“TKRF")
SEERMBARRE (T8E])

Mr Chan How Chung, Victor is a director and deemed to be the
substantial shareholder of RPI and TKRF. He is a director of D&M.
The terms and conditions of the financing loans of each of RPI, D&M
and TKRF are market driven and agreed at arm’s length between the
borrowers and the financiers. When making decisions on the above
competing business, the relevant director, in the performance of his
duty as a director of the Company, has acted and will continue to act
in the best commercial interest of the Group.

Money lending
&%

Money lending
BN

Money lending
B

BREBTEARBRUBERERZ2EZERERAZSE
DNAIZEBRE - H ADAMZ EE - ) 875 - D&M
FEREEBZHBERZERREGHHEMIS BRI
HIEBEETE LN EREHBTE RelFT LS FERZ
RERF - BHRESE (RBITREARARESE 2B
HIKETHERERRHTAAEERERENSY
18-
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INTEREST OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2009, the interests or short positions of the
following parties (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEeHsE (&)

FTERFES

RZZFZEAFT_A=+—R BAQTAREISFR
HERPIE3B6RAEFEZECMME  THETT (R
ARAB—REFH—RITHRABIN) RARB M F
BEHEZERRREMT :

Number of Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Shares held Nature of interest issued share capital
RERERB FERHEE EEME HERTREABESH®
Kingly Profits Corporation 1,198,805,635 Beneficial owner 15.79%
(Note) EmEAEA
(Kiat)
Bank of America Corporation 671,123,700 Interest of controlled corporations 8.84%
EH A AR
Capital Research and Management 447,654,500 Investment manager 5.90%
Company REKIE
Note: These Shares are held by Kingly Profits Corporation as beneficial owner. Wit = ZE W15 Kingly Profits CorporationfE & % 25
Kingly Profits Corporation is wholly owned by Smart Ease Corporation, B A#5H > Kingly Profits CorporationfiSmart Ease
which in turn, is wholly owned by Mr Chan How Chung, Victor. The CorporationZ & #7% * f1Smart Ease Corporationfl|&8
interest disclosed herein was the same as the interest of Mr Chan How REFBAERERB - RUBBE REHARE [E
Chung, Victor as disclosed in the section under “Interests of Directors and ENFTBTRASZHEE B EEERZEL
Chief Executives” in this report. 2z HESMER e
Save as disclosed above, the register required to be kept under bR EXETEBEE N ﬁ})% F REREEDIE33616E
Section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2009, the GFeEmfftER R_ETAF+_A=+—8"
Company had not been notified of any other person who had an RABWEBEMG T EMATRARFRMD REHE
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the KR ERS AR -
Company.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS BEEEWN
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the FRAWERBEEARA 2 A ERBRBHAES
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were MENFREEEEL -
entered into or existed during the year.
PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S BEEHBEEART LHES
LISTED SECURITIES
The Company and its subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or AABIHEWNBRARBE_SENF+ZA=1+—

redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2009.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEeHE (&)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Particulars of connected transactions of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2009 are set out in note 47 to
the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2009 are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 148.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
Particulars of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out
in note 39 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye- laws
of the Company or the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 20 to 24.

REXLot Holdings Limited f1Z= PR AR AT
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the
date of this report.

AUDITOR
Ting Ho Kwan & Chan retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ting Ho Kwan

& Chan is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Chan How Chung, Victor
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 April 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B ®E

TING HO KWAN & CHAN

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF REXLOT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of REXLot
Holdings Limited (formerly REXCAPITAL Financial Holdings Limited)
(the “Company”), its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 38 to 147, which comprise
the consolidated and the Company balance sheets as at 31 December
2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

REXLot Holdings Limited ﬁfq:‘%ﬁﬂﬁﬁpﬂﬂa
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Hong Kong, 28 April 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

e W& R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZZZNF+-_A=+—HILFE

REXLot Holdings Limited ﬁfq:‘%ﬁﬂﬁﬁpﬂﬂa

2009 2008
—EZThEF e SPAN:S
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HiiF FET FET
Turnover E 35 5 1,272,069 1,173,000
Cost of sales/services rendered HE IR R 2 KA (635,508) (606,641)
Other income H b A 5 8,085 6,085
Other gains/(losses), net Hitzs (E18)F58 5 19,496 (19,301)
Bad debts written off, net AR H F (422) (194)
Allowance for impairment of RIERREREFE
bad and doubtful debts, net (62) (44,995)
Selling and distribution expenses  $H%& &5 & A (46,329) (35,961)
Administrative expenses THRER (165,484) (128,535)
Operating profit mE A 451,845 343,458
Finance costs &R 8 (1,608) (1,243)
Profit before taxation R Bt A1 2 F 9 450,237 342,215
Taxation G7RE] 12 (34,082) (51,414)
Profit for the year FERA 416,155 290,801
Attributable to: AT AL R :
Equity holders of the Company RAFIERFFAA 14 424,581 267,641
Non-controlling interests FEFE A 2 (8,426) 23,160
416,155 290,801
Earnings per share for profit EAGERFEEAEMLERZ
attributable to equity holders FR2ER
of the Company 15
- Basic &R 5.66 cents 1l 3.68 cents 1l
— Diluted — s 5.63 cents 1l 3.66 cents Ll

Details of dividends paid and proposed for the year are disclosed in
note 13 to the financial statements.

The notes on pages 46 to 147 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

FRENRZHZRNEEZFBERHEHRERME3

W

FAENATE WA B AGRAE M BHRE 561D -
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REXLot Holdings Limited T2+ IZRARA T
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REETEWRER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTThF+_A=+—HIFE

2009 2008
—EZThEF e SPAN:S
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Profit for the year FERF 416,155 290,801
Other comprehensive income Hih2mE K =
Exchange difference arising MEEINEB B RR 2E R E5E
from translation of financial
statements of foreign
operations 6 25,664
Total comprehensive income FRAZEBRAE
for the year 416,161 316,465
Attributable to: AT AL :
Equity holders of the Company RAFERFEEA 424,587 289,151
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR = (8,426) 27,314
416,161 316,465

The notes on pages 46 to 147 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEERBX

At 31 December 2009 R-ZZETNF+_-_A=+—H

REXLot Holdings Limited #1Z=fR I BPR A A

2009 2008
—EZThEF e SPAN:S
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB KK 16 156,428 136,968
Prepaid lease payments on land & b PR R 2 B AT AR
use rights 17 36,120 36,878
Investment property wREME 18 962 962
Goodwill 5k 19 1,694,266 1,479,022
Intangible assets mEEE 20 109,663 116,882
Deposits for acquisition of BAHELHMEREZT £
leasehold land use rights 21 3,129 3,129
Statutory deposits ETEEE 24 632 632
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE 25 1,580 1,535
Investment deposits K& 2 26 - 126,000
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 2,002,780 1,902,008
Current assets REBEE
Inventories L 27 99,929 79,675
Trade receivables & W E 5 IR 28 679,029 708,905
Utility and other deposits NAEEREMIZS 29 248,056 127,567
Prepayments and other receivables 817 5% & H b & g 5k TH 30 385,459 273,989
Financial assets at fair value BRABREAAENECEMEE
through profit or loss 31 23,064 9,311
Current tax refundable EEERTIIE - 2,705
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHEH 32 353,158 244,043
Total current assets MBEEEE 1,788,695 1,446,195
Total assets WEE 3,791,475 3,348,203
EQUITY RERERE
Capital and reserves ERNTAERFEAEREERRGERE
attributable to equity holders
of the Company
Share capital N 33 75,902 73,962
Reserves 5] 3,261,548 2,904,321
Proposed final dividend BEARHARE 13 33,083 -
3,370,533 2,978,283
Non-controlling interests FERER 76,138 82,272
Total equity EREE 3,446,671 3,060,555
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REXLot Holdings Limited T2+ IZRARA T

Consolidated Balance Sheet {continued)

REEERERER (&)

At 31 December 2009 RZ=ZZEZENF+-_A=+—H
2009 2008
—EEAF —EENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
M &t FET FET
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities kRBHEE
Borrowings BE 38 - 11,807
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBBEE 25 47,338 47,476
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERE 47,338 59,283
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables ERE S EX 36 111,133 153,880
Other payables and accruals E i & FRIE & FE BT FRIB 37 77,095 55,019
Borrowings =9 38 80,190 2,351
Current tax liabilities EHMBIEAE 29,048 17,115
Total current liabilities mBAGEEE 297,466 228,365
Total liabilities waeE 344,804 287,648
Total equity and liabilities BRREZREEATE 3,791,475 3,348,203
Net current assets REEEFE 1,491,229 1,217,830
Total assets less current HMEERABARG
liabilities 3,494,009 3,119,838

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board on 28 April 2010 and are signed on behalf of the Board by:

Chan How Chung, Victor

BRER
DIRECTOR

BF

The notes on pages 46 to 147 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

EEREX

At 31 December 2009 R-ZZETNF+_-_A=+—H

REXLot Holdings Limited #1Z=fR I BPR A A

2009 2008
—EEAF —EENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
B &t FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries S IENEIPA 22 2,530,968 2,484,180
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables J&1 5k & H {th fig U 7118 30 1,459 1,468
Amount due from a subsidiary JE R BT /BB A B 3R 8 22 222,000 -
Cash and bank balances Re RBITHEH 32 16,142 3,574
Total current assets MEEEBE 239,601 5,042
Total assets WEE 2,770,569 2,489,222
EQUITY BRER
Capital and reserves KXAREEEEAEWN
attributable to equity holders  BEXRRf##E
of the Company
Share capital & A 33 75,902 73,962
Reserves i 35 2,644,065 2,413,450
Proposed final dividend EERERE 13 33,083 -
Total equity A 2,753,050 2,487,412
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables and accruals Eh FE T RRIE K B R ARE 37 17,519 1,810
Total liabilities Hme s 17,519 1,810
Total equity and liabilities REEZRREELEHE 2,770,569 2,489,222
Net current assets REBEEFE 222,082 3,232
Total assets less current BEERABERE
liabilities 2,753,050 2,487,412

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board on 28 April 2010 and are signed on behalf of the Board by:

Chan How Chung, Victor

BREH
DIRECTOR
£

The notes on pages 46 to 147 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

BBRREN - ZT-ZFOA-_+\AEESFTERE
REETE YATIHEEFERRES:

Boo Chun Lun
i BE
DIRECTOR
oo

FA6E147TE 2 MIsEB A IS HRE — 5615 -

Annual Report 2009 =ZBAFEFH



= Consolidated Statement of Chonges in Equﬂy
BRARZEH R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZZZAF+-A=+— EIJti-J?"--

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARARERAARE
Capital ~ Share-based Exchange Proposed Non-
Share Share redemption  payment Special  translation  Retained final controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  dividend Total interests equity
KRG
E5EE  XfiRAE 3 ] FER

BE  BHERE R ZBE RHER  ERGR  REEA KRR ait B RuAE
HKS000  HKSUOD  HKSOOD  HKSUOD  HKSOOD  HKSDOO  HKSOOD  HKSUOO  HKSUOD  HKSOOO  HKSOOD

FiEr FET FET FET FET FET iz 23 T TEr FiEr FiEr

Balance at 1 January 2008 J‘\ﬁﬂE*EZ?&@% 71380 1,990,643 - 16,013 12,210 10,539 13,121 - 231396 127431 2,441,403
Profit for the year - - - - - - 267,641 - 267,641 23,160 290,801
Other comprehensive income

for the year - - - - - 21,510 - - 21,510 4154 25,664
Additional investments in subsidiaries [ EMR A - - - - - - - - - (72,967) (72,967)
Non-controlling interests arising EHEARmELL

from acquisition of subsidiaries (note 46 () 3 i746(c) - - - - - - - - - 483 488
Recognition of share option benefits TENERERT

at fair value - - - 2212 - - - - 2212 - 2212
Issue of new shares EERA 2,740 373,060 - - - - - - 375800 - 375800
Transaction coss attributable to EIHRBOR AHE

issue of new shares - (289) - - - - - - (289) - (289)
Transfer to share premium on RirEEREmEZROEE

exercise of share options - 4,582 - (4,582) - - - - - - -
Repurchase of own shares BEARARR (158) (2399) 158 - - - (158) - (2,557) - (2,557)
Balance at 31 December 2008 and 7?“/“ E+ZAZt-8ER

1 January 2009 ZETNF-R-AZER 73962 2,365,597 158 13,643 12,210 32,049 380,604 - 2978283 82,212 3,060,555
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - - s - 4581 (8426 416,155
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMZERE - - - - - 6 - - 6 - 6
Additional investments in subsidiaries KHBARZBIMRE - - - - (84,855) - - - (34859 (6,145 (91,000)
Non-controlling interests arising WERBLAMEEL

from acquisition of subsidiaries (note 46 () R F46(c)) - - - - - - - - - 8,437 8,437
Recognition of share option benefits BRRL L B ENBRERT

at fair value - - - 7,951 - - - - 7,951 - 7951
Share options lapsed BREXN - - - (1,679) - - 1679 - - - -
Issue of new shares Eotibyl 1,940 56,260 - - - - - - 58,200 - 58,200
Transfer to share premium on R BREMSZRAEE

exercise of share options - 2,157 - (2,157) - - - - - - -
Interim dividends (note 13) - - - - - - (13,633) - (13,633) - (13,633)

Proposed final dividend (note 73) - - - - - - (33,083) 33,083 - - -

Balance at 31 December 2009 75902 2,424,014* 158+ 17,758% 27,415% 32,055* 760,148* 33,083 3370533 76,138 3,446,671

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERBREERGAEERBBERZEEFEA
approximately HK$3,261,548,000 in the consolidated balance sheet. 3,261,548,000/% 7T °

The notes on pages 46 to 147 are an integral part of these BA6E147B 2B ARG E M IEHmE — 21D -

consolidated financial statements.
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REXLot Holdings Limited #1Z=fR I BPR A A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEREMRE R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZZZNF+-_A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
—EZThF —ZEENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &t FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETFTH
Profit before taxation B 35 A1 s A 450,237 342,215
Adjustments for: FHEIER :
Dividend income & B A 5 (38) -
Interest income B WA 5 (698) (1,727)
Interest expense FEMZ 8 1,608 1,243
Share option benefits R iR 34 7,951 2,212
Bad debts written off, net AR F R 422 194
Allowance for impairment of RIZEREREFE
bad and doubtful debts, net 62 44,995
Depreciation and amortisation E R 9 49,811 31,043
Loss on disposal of property, HEVME BERIKBE2ZER
plant and equipment 9 8,853 3,160
(Gains)/losses on disposal of HERBBREANE
financial assets at fair value AECemMEEZ
through profit or loss (Uez) B8 5 (3,487) 4,002
Fair value (gains)/losses on BREBERERALENEZ
financial assets at fair value CRMEEZANE
through profit or loss (M) Big 5 (16,009) 14,973
Operating profit before R EEESE A 2 KERF
changes in working capital 498,712 442,310
Changes in working capital EELESRE (TEREUB2ZRE
(excluding the effects of REGEEAERZERZHE)
acquisition and exchange
differences on consolidation)
Decrease in statutory deposits EEEER D - 1,545
Increase in inventories FE#Em (20,225) (23,736)
Decrease/(increase) in trade e E 5 RFOR L, (3m)
receivables 42,608 (250,940)
Decrease in utility and other NAFEREMZES D
deposits 5,511 4,702
Increase in prepayments other TE AR 3R B H Ath & U R TE 1 A0
receivables (108,563) (16,980)
Increase in pledged bank deposits 5 & # #8 17 77 ZE A0 (16,875) -
(Increase)/decrease in bank BITHEER (38 0) R
balances - segregated accounts —BUERP (8,610) 13,120
(Decrease)/increase in trade EE SRR i) /H#Em
payables (43,913) 32,259
Increase in other payables and EL A FE SRR I FE BT ACIE I N
accruals 10,859 34,515
Net cash generated from REEBFBREFERE
operations 359,504 236,795
Interest received 24 B 698 1,727
Interest paid 2ATFE (1,075) (1,243)
Taxation paid [RENE TR (22,286) (11,163)
Net cash generated from RETHMBREFE
operating activities 336,841 226,116
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REXLot Holdings Limited T2+ IZRARA T
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows {continued)

mEeEBResRER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTThF+_A=+—HIFE

2009 2008
—EZThF ZTT)N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
M it FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Purchases of financial assets EERRIEBRZANE
at fair value through HECeMEE
profit or loss (5,162) (8,407)
Purchases of property, BEME WER&E
plant and equipment 16 (67,160) (54,603)
Proceeds on disposal of HEBBEREANEBENEL
financial assets at fair value EREEZBNRIEA
through profit or loss 10,911 10,193
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE WEKZ#HZMGEHRIEA
plant and equipment = 28
Increase in intangible assets | EELM = (17,090)
Acquisition of additional interests MM B QA L HERRE
from minority shareholders of W TR M 25
the subsidiaries 45 (91,000) (354,480)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of WEMHME QT (NRAEFEHES)
cash acquired 46 (208,631) (247,048)
Deposits paid for acquisition of BAMELHEAEZENET2
leasehold land use rights = (3,129)
Net cash used in investing REFHMAREERE
activities (361,042) (674,536)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REES
Dividend received 2R S 38 -
Issue of shares, net of TTRG (FRBREITER)
issuing costs 58,200 15,511
Proceeds from borrowings BEMSRIE 79,590 -
Repayment of borrowings BEBEMEHE (15,405) (1,656)
Repurchase of own shares A E NN = (2,557)
Dividends paid to the equity ERARBIERZBEEAZNTZRE
holders of the Company 13 (13,633) -
Net cash generated from METBHFEREFHE
financing activities 108,790 11,298
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) ReRESLEEY
IN CASH AND CASH #h (Rd) FE
EQUIVALENTS 84,589 (437,122)
Exchange gain on cash and ReRBELEENZER RS
cash equivalents - 4,056
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—HBZERERELZEEY
AT 1 JANUARY 224,598 657,664
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=ZHA=+—HBzRER
AT 31 DECEMBER Re%EY 32 309,187 224,598

The notes on pages 46 to 147 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes fo the Financial Statements

B WK KA

o the year ended 31 December 2009 BEZZZNF+_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

REXLot Holdings Limited (formerly REXCAPITAL Financial
Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) was incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at 34/F,
COSCO Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza, 183 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation scheme to rationalise
the structure of the Group in preparing for the listing of the
Company's shares on the Stock Exchange, the Company became
the holding company of the Group in Hong Kong on 15 August
2000 and its shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 28 September 2000.

By a special resolution passed on the special general meeting
held on 30 January 2009, it was resolved that the Company’s
name be changed from “REXCAPITAL Financial Holdings
Limited” to "REXLot Holdings Limited” and the adoption of the
Chinese name "HIZERHPFIERBR A F]" as a secondary name of

the Company.

During the year, the Group involves in the following principal
activities:

° Lottery business
° Financial services:
Broking
Securities margin financing
Corporate finance and asset management
Money lending

The lottery business comprises development and production
of lottery machines, related operating software system and
networks for lottery industry, the distribution and marketing of
lottery products and development of mobile value added services
for lottery business in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

REXLot Holdings Limited WRBHERERAT

—&Eﬂ
HEPZEBEBRAT (B [HES/ERE
RAF]) (TRRF)EREFRELMAZNE
féﬁﬁﬁﬁ??fi"ﬂOﬂi"ﬂﬁﬁiiiﬁﬂfﬂ%ﬁﬁ%\
BEBERETISIRMALTTESTEKNE34E -

RIEASEBERNEERBAZHE AR TR A

R EMZzEBEMRANE ARABARZEETF
NATEBRAAEEREBZER AT A
BOBRRZZEZEFAAZT N\BRRERZF
FREM

BR_ZZNF-A=ZTHRITZBREFIX
ELrABZHIABR BREAAFZEHEA
[REXCAPITAL Financial Holdings Limited | 2%
/& [REXLot Holdings Limited | » Y3 4% [ %= H
HEBRBERARIEARRRIZE B

N AEBERFEUATEEES:

o KEXEK

o & B AR
BHEARME
rERENEEER

=g

=N

HEEBBERBEARANE ([FE]) R
EERMENEEXER FRTEBEBEEFERN
RBMBES PREERNEXETSER AR
BREYEFEGNTRIBERS-
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REXLot Ho]d_ilngs'_Lir'nifed'?@fﬂi%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"),
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial

which collective term

Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the applicable of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and futures periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRS that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and
Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Annual Report 2009 =ZEAFFH

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-TTAG+-A=+—BLFE

2. EEGHEBE

(a)

BHlRS

REAMBRRDZBE LSRG H
WEREBEBEEMBREED B
EERENEEMBRELEL FEGE
EARZE URBERAREFRAURE
B (REHED) ZHRERTE - RUB MR
NEBMmES EMHRA (T EWRR])Z
BRABRERE- AKRERANTIEZSFTR
RIRNIA T2 & -

RURATEHBRE LN HERED
SEERELYERERARA2RA
BB WA RER Y BE H
RB®- i RABBRDIEEBEER
REZEERTHBARY S EA AR
T 16 A SR 48 10 At O o
B5GH 2 AR R B 2 0 E e B
IEE REERTRERKSEEHAR
TR

IR R B B AR A RAABER
®eMER @A EFEBER A28
- BIRZIERT R e BRI W BE R - Sk HE 3T 2
LR HIRE R R R EI R RIME RT AR B RS
KRR AR -

BB R B R T B 38 4 0 B B 1
BEBEAEAYEN LY XA
ERBTEEER T FARLEARELY
fis R B B4R <

ERGHMAGERME THIEREERT
BEMBHRELER ZELRAEER
ARABZ ARG HIEERERL A HIER
R - AU ERERUZERER
ERZEHERERED UNHEFBRERY
RezAgrtBERBES HEEAE
EREERR-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HRME (&)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(9

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2009 comprise the Company, its subsidiaries

and jointly controlled entities (together, the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the

financial statements is the historical cost basis except that

investment properties (note 2(h)) and financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss (note 2(e)(i)) are stated at their

fair values.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except where otherwise indicated.

Consolidation

()

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies, generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued
by the Group. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. There is a choice, on the basis
of each acquisition to measure the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets.

2.

REXLot Holdi'ng; Limited WRBHERERAT

ETEGHEE (F)
(b) HHBEGEREE
RE-FEAFET-A=+—BLEEA

(0

HAUBRREBEART EWBRRR
REHIERE (S [AE@E]) -

BRIREWE (H2(h)) RBBESEEQ R
Bt z2mEE (ME2e)() UARE
ABRON - A BL B 75 R B R DA S A AN E

RETEE%E-
I B A 8

FZEMBBRRIIANETES
ELHEETRE RIFESEMIE-

FRE AR
(i) HERE
B8~ TE$§EE%T%E%%&
EEBRRZE2HMAR (BERFKER
B — &%EiL*%&m
PR - AR A EBR DS S —
AEIE @EE BRI AT Lk
ZEERZEZGERTE -WEA
ARAEEFEERTAKREEAES
E#RA AR WRASEEERKEZES
BEANBEA ALK
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REBEZEBAGERRBEEA
R-WBHBARZEZRERASE
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Consolidation (continued)

()

(ii)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the Group's share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of
the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests
that are not owned by the Company, whether
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those interests
which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
subsidiaries are state at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivables.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interest as transactions with equity holders of the
Company. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-TTAGF+-A=+—BLFE

2. EEEFHE(E)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HRME (&)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9

(d)

Consolidation (continued)

(iii) Joint ventures
A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture that
involves the establishment of a corporation,
partnership or other entity in which the Group has an
interest. A joint venture is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and one or more of other parties
undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint
control, which is the contractually agreed sharing
of control over an economic activity, and exists only
when the strategic financial and operating decisions
relating to the activity require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The Group's interests in jointly controlled entities
are accounted for by proportionate consolidation.
The Group combines its share of the joint ventures’
individual income and expenses, assets and liabilities
and cash flows on a line-by-line basis with similar
items in the Group's financial statements. The Group
recognises the portion of gains or losses on the sale
of assets by the Group to the joint venture that it is
attributable to the other ventures. The Group does
not recognise its share of profits or losses from the
joint venture that result from the Group’s purchase
of assets from the joint venture until it re-sells the
assets to an independent party. However, a loss on
the transaction is recognised immediately if the loss
provides evidence of a reduction in the net realisable

value of current assets, or an impairment loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiaries/jointly
controlled entities at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries/jointly controlled entities (using
proportionate consolidation) is separately disclosed in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses (note 2(j)).
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and
losses on disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

2.

REXLot Holdi'ng; Limited WRBHERERAT
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose identified
according to operating segment.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial assets is
classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets.

(i) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date which are
classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans

and receivables comprise “statutory deposits”, “trade
receivables”, “utility and other deposits”, “other
receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the

balance sheet (notes 2(I) and 2(m)).
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BB RKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-TTAGF+-A=+—BLFE

2. EEEFHE(E)

(d)

(e)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

o the year ended 31 December 2009 BEZZZNF+_A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

()

Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are presented in the income statement
within “other gains/(losses) — net” in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the Group's right
to receive payments is established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance
sheet at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses (note 2(j)). Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow
hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant

and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE_ZTZEAF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated sufficient to
write off their costs, less accumulated impairment losses
and residual values, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

— Leasehold buildings 30 - 50 years
— Leasehold improvements 20%
— Lottery machines 4 - 12 years
— Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 - 25%
— Plant and machinery 10 - 25%
— Motor vehicles 10 - 20%

The assets’ residual values, if any and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. The gain or loss on derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment, calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item, is included in the income statement in
the period the item is derecognised.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights are lump sum
upfront payments to acquire long-term interest in lessee-
occupied properties.

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights relating to
buildings of the Group are stated at cost and are amortised
over the period of the lease on the straight-line basis which
is charged to the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

(M)

Investment properties
Investment properties, being properties owned or held
under finance leases to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation, are stated in the balance sheet at fair value.
These include lands held for currently undetermined
future use. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note

2(s).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as investment property on a property-by-property basis.
Any such property interest which has been classified as
an investment property is accounted for as if it were held
under a finance lease (note 2(t)), and the same accounting
policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases. Prepaid
lease payments are accounted for as described in note 2(t).

Property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property is classified as property, plant
and equipment and stated at cost until construction or
development is complete, at which time it is reclassified as
investment property at fair value. Any difference between
the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired are
recognised at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (note 2(j)). Amortisation of intangible
assets with finite useful lives is charged to income
statement on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated

impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the income statement when the
asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-TTAG+-A=+—BLFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(M)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that they may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired.

(i) Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of five to
ten years.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining
computer software programmes are recognised as
expenses as incurred.

(ii) Deferred development costs

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop computer
software is capitalised and deferred only when
the projects are clearly defined; the expenditure is
separately identifiable and can be measured reliably;
there is reasonable certainty that the projects
are technically feasible, and the products have
commercial value. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (note 2(j)). Amortisation is provided
on the straight-line basis over the commercial lives
of the underlying production, subject to a maximum
of 20 years commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) =
MRk (&)

““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZNF+A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESFEHE(E)
(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued) () BEEE (FERM (B)

(iii) Operating right

Operating right represents expenditure incurred
on obtaining an operating right in a lottery centre.
The operating right is with indefinite useful life and
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses and tested for impairment annually.

(iii) RBEE

BEREARB -—REERLZLE
BMELZ X REREAERT
FRFIR - R B AR AE (] R 5 E B
B AREFETRERR -

(iv) Technical know-how (iv) il ZEF7 A
Technical know-how represents the technology, BMEMMBEERrEEK 28
technical information, know-how and experience in B iR E R EPT A R AR - BT
relation to the lottery business. The technical know- HFMBAER ER A AFR - WL
how is with infinite useful life and carried at cost less ARER ZFHREBEINER URE
any accumulated impairment losses and tested for FREITRERHA -
impairment annually.

() Impairment of assets EERE
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities (i) BEZFFREREMENEZHE

and other receivables

Investments in equity securities (other than
investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities: note 2(j)(ii)) and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becomes probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument

below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-TTAG+-A=+—BLFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j)) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities are not reversed.

- For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised

in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) =
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““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZNF+A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EEEHBER(E)
() Impairment of assets (continued) () EBEREE)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities () BREAZBFREREMERSEZHE

(ii)

and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- prepaid lease payments on land use rights
classified as being held under an operating

lease;

- intangible assets;

- investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures
(except for those classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group that is classified as

held for sale); and

- goodwill.

(ii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-TTAG+-A=+—BLFE

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j)) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or

not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating units (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2.

““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZNF+A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(note 2(j)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

M

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises design costs, raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less

applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an

expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value, and after initial recognition, at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (note 2(j)), except for the
following receivables:

- interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting being immaterial, that are measured at
cost less any allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts; and

- short-term receivables with no stated interest rate
and the effect of discounting being immaterial, that
are measured at their original invoiced amount less
any allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful
debts.

Annual Report 2009 =ZEAFFH

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-TTAG+-A=+—BLFE

2. EEEFHE(E)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

o the year ended 31 December 2009 BEZZZNF+_A=+—HIFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and at
banks, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
the tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, if the deferred
tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. The
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

2.
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews and
assesses the recognised and unrecognised deferred tax
assets and the future taxable profit to determine whether
any recognised deferred tax assets should be derecognised
and any unrecognised deferred tax assets should be
recognised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities, if any,
measured in accordance with note 2(r), trade and other
payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost, except
for the following payables:

- short-term payables with no stated interest rate and
the effect of discounting being immaterial, that are
measured at their original invoiced amount; and

- interest-free loans from related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
being immaterial, that are measured at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) e
R RME (F)

o the year ended 31 December 2009 BEZZZNF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FEGHEBE(E)

(p)

(a)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transactions costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial
liability, including fees and commissions paid to agents,
advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies
and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

(p)

BE

EERVNER AR ERELENR FH KA HE
RoRXGRARBREEWRE FTHHE
CRMEENCHBENEERS BEMT
RE R SENMZXZENERNMAS
EERBNEFXMOME ULEE
BRI © & B R IR B IR AN ABR - (E 17
s (B ZRA) REREEZZFHIA
BEREMZE  EEEM M ERERER -

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the BEIERBEE HERNEEE EEEER
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of BEERBERREREEEERERL+Z

the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

Employee benefits

(i)  Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The Group's employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The subsidiaries in the PRC do not provide a pension
plan for their employees. The subsidiaries in the
PRC made contributions to the defined contribution
retirement plans in the PRC which are recognised as
expenses in the income statement as incurred. The
subsidiaries have no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid.
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REXLot Holdings Limited BRFHERERAT

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances,
such leave which remains untaken as at the balance
sheet date is permitted to be carried forward and
utilised by the respective employees in the following
year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet date
for the expected future cost of such paid leave
earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets). Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. At each balance sheet date, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the income statement, and a corresponding
adjustment to share-based payment reserve over the

remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exercised.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB wmRME (&)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payment
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group's policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of
any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 2(r)(iii) below
if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and (i) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.
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REXLot Holdings Limited BRFHERERAT

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a business
combination are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured.
After their initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that
would be determined in accordance with note 2(r)(iii)
below. Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued are
disclosed in accordance with note 2(r)(iii) below.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Annual Report 2009 =ZEAFFH

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

MBEHRRKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE_ZTZAF+-_A=+—HILFE -

2. EEEFHE(E)
(N ERHZHBEER BERIREE (E)

(ii)

REESHITIBANEAREE

REEAGABANKARBN S Z
DAERR DA EAEHA EH
Rt H D R EHERE E LK
R BE S DAY 1A T R B R R R AT 8
(388 A ) BRLAR 4R S 1) B B 2(r) (il B 2
MBEMERZRSERER - N
BHABANIRABENTEEZARN
BRI S E - A ERE T M E2)
(i 2

& wF

(i) BERERAALE

EASERNBEEFMAR DAAER
HEZEE BAREARETZER
E T BB BN - REESIBL It
{EH A SE b a1 07 08 B R BE TESE ]
FRras sk HRE 2 B EFEDEE - W
EREREBEELN NRENETE
MEEMERX 2 RERE-

55 A BE 7R ) P A B R as - SR EER
SAEMAEZSE FE8ZAL
BERIAAE HHAPHEEX
s A A R ME AR BR S o 1R F R R K
ERARENEEHESEBERE
HAMBEEE TERER/RAAA
& RIS R RN T B 1t
FEARRIER SN

67



= REXLot Ho|<-:Ji.ng; Limited ﬁfﬂ:‘%ﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬂa
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZZNF+A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FEGHEBE(E)
(s) Revenue recognition (s) WARER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

WARB W HERREZ R A BTSN

@ F

Iz A AR R A AR EE - A KK

A(MER) e T8 A ARIESR

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue R
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:
(i)  Commission income and handling fee income, (i) WHEBRARFHEEUN BEEERE

asset management and advisory fee income
Income arising from broking, corporate finance and
asset management is recognised when the relevant
services are rendered and the amount can be reliably
estimated and it is probable that it will be received.

RIE KA

REL CEXEYBREEEEMEL
ZWA - REEEARGEEHESE
A& IRt B A A AL WONES RERR o

(ii)  Gain or loss on investments held for trading (i) HEEEEREZ N = BERE
Realised gain or loss on investments held for trading RHEEEERAZEERBANEE
is recognised on a trade date basis whilst unrealised DIEZSGBEERER MBEEEER
gain or loss on investments held for trading is WEZ RER WA EE T ARER
recognised to restate to their fair value on the NEBIABEREERB ZARE.
balance sheet date.

(iiij) Income from provision of lottery machines and (i) EBHEEEREERBTUA G5
related services, comprising:

Sales of goods BEmHeE

Sales of goods including lottery machines and related EmEEEEYERREBRRMGR
software systems are recognised when the goods B REQREXERFPYEHERE
are delivered at the customers’ premises which is FPEXEGKER MESEHAA
taken to be the point in time when the customer has B % 121 3 K AT A5 WO HY AR A E Uk A TE
accepted the goods; the related risks and rewards of MEBER WATBRIFLERN -
ownership and collectability of the related receivables

are reasonably assured. Revenue excludes value

added tax.

Income from lottery business HEREZEEZ WA

Income from lottery business including lottery ﬂ@é%ﬁ%‘%%f‘ZHﬂU\ BRERT
ticketing service, consultancy service, maintenance BRIR  ## R & H A48 AR
service and other related services is recognised in the % R R H&’ﬁ% 2 e EHEERA
accounting period in which the service is rendered. R WATBIEHER

Revenue excludes sales tax.

Income from sharing of lottery sales JE 15 R FE W s A

Income from sharing of lottery sales is recognised on
an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of
the relevant agreement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

MEBEHRRKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-TTAG+-A=+—BLFE N

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii) Income from provision of lottery machines and
related services, comprising: (continued)
Rental income from investment properties
Rental income from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased assets. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payment receivables.

(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(v) Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in the profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in the profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

(vi) Dividend income
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases of assets are classified as finance leases when the
leases transfer substantially all risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of assets to the Company. All other assets are
classified as operating leases.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t

Leases (continued)

()

(ii)

Leases of land and buildings

Whenever necessary in order to classify and account
for a lease of land and buildings, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

The land element is classified as an operating lease
unless title is expected to pass to the lessee by
the end of the lease term. The building element is
classified as a finance or operating lease in the same
way as leases of other assets. The payments made
on acquiring land held under an operating lease are
recognised in the balance sheet as prepaid lease
payments on land use rights which are stated at cost
and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property using fair value
model or is held for development for sale, and if
classified as investment property, is accounted for as
if held under a finance lease.

If the prepaid lease payments on a lease of land and
buildings cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements at the inception of the
lease, the entire lease is classified as a finance lease,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease.

Operating leases

Where the Group is the lessee, payments made under
operating leases, net of any incentives received from
the lessor, are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease. Where
the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current
assets and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease period. Contingent
rentals (if any) are charged or credited to the income
statement in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Foreign currency translation

These financial statements are presented in HK$, which
is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded
in the functional currency rates ruling at the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date. All differences are taken to the income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entities are currencies other than
HK$. As at the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into HK$ at the rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and their profit
or loss items are translated into HK$ at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The exchange
differences arising from the translation are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange translation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount
recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign
entity is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into HK$ at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the balance sheet, until they have approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
Directors the authority to declare interim dividend.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group
or exercise significant influence over the Group in
making financial and operating policy decisions, or
has joint control over the Group;

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

MEBEHRRKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-TTAG+-A=+—BLFE N

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(y)

Related parties (continued)
(i) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's parent or a
close family member of such an individual, or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

(v)  the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control
or significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is
for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating recourses to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of the products and
services, the nature of the production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

Adoption of new or revised accounting standards
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group as

follows:
HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements
HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing Costs
HKAS 32 & HKAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and
(Amendments) Obligations Arising on Liquidation
HKFRSs (Amendment) Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
(Amendments) Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Disclosures — Improving Disclosures
Financial Instruments about Financial Statements
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
HK(IFRIC) = Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate
HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation
HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers

The adoption of the above new or revised HKFRS has no
material effect on how the results and financial position for the
current or prior accounting periods have been prepared and
presented except that the following set out information on the
significant changes in accounting policies for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been made.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new or revised accounting standards

(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007),
details of changes in equity during the period arising from
transactions with equity shareholders in their capacity
as such have been presented separately from all other
income and expense in a revised consolidated statement
of changes in equity. All other terms of income and
expense are presented either in a one-statement (i.e. a
single “Statement of Comprehensive Income”) or a two-
statement (i.e. an “Income Statement” together with
a "Statement of Comprehensive Income”) approach.
Corresponding amounts have been restated to conform to
the new presentation. This change in presentation has no
effect on reported profit or loss, total income and expense
or net assets for any period presented.

Amendments to HKFRS 7

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKFRS
7, the financial statements include expanded disclosures
about the fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
instruments, categorising these fair value measurements
into a three-level fair value hierarchy according to the
extent to which they are based on observable market
data. The Group has taken advantage of the transitional
provisions set out in the amendments to HKFRS 7, under
which comparative information for the newly required
disclosures about the fair value measurements of financial
instruments has not been provided.

Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)

The "“improvements to HKFRSs (2008)” comprise a number
of minor and non-urgent amendments to a range of
HKFRS which the HKICPA has issued as an omnibus batch
of amendments. However, these amendments have not
resulted in any changes to the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB wRME (&)

o the year ended 31 December 2009 BEZZZNF+_A=+—HIFE

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new or revised accounting standards

(continued)

(d)

(e)

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the
requirement that dividends out of pre-acquisition profits
should be recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment in the investee, rather than as
income. As a result, as from 1 January 2009, all dividends
receivable from subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities,
whether out of pre- or post-acquisition profits, will
be recognised in the Company’'s profit or loss and the
carrying amount of the investment in the investee will
be not reduced unless that carrying amount is assessed
to be impaired as a result of the investee declaring the
dividend. In such cases, in addition to recognising dividend
income in profit or loss, the Company would recognise
an impairment loss. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in the amendment, this new policy will be
applied prospectively to any dividends receivable in the
current or future periods and previous periods have not
been restated.

HKFRS 8

HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based on the
way that the Group's chief operating decision maker
regards and manages the Group, with the amounts
reported for each reportable segment being the measures
reported to the Group's chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of assessing segment performance and
making decisions about operating matters. This contrasts
with the presentation of segment information in prior
years which was based on a disaggregation of the Group's
financial statements into segments based on related
products and services and on geographical areas. The
adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted in the presentation of
segment information in a manner that is more consistent
with internal reporting provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management, and has resulted in additional
reportable segments being identified and presented (note
6). Corresponding amounts have been provided on a basis
consistent with the revised segment information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Standards early adopted by the Group

The Group has early adopted the following revised standards for
the year ended 31 December 2009:

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS 27 (Revised) has
resulted in a change in the accounting policies. The changes in
the accounting policy in respect of HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS
27 (Revised) have been applied prospectively to transactions
during the year ended 31 December 2009. The adoption
of other amendments and interpretations does not have a
significant effect on the results and financial position of the
Group. The details of the changes are set out as below.

HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKFRS 3 (Revised) continued to apply the acquisition method
to business combinations, with some significant changes. For
example, all acquisition-related costs should be expensed. The
cost of acquisition includes the fair value at the acquisition
date of any contingent purchase consideration. In a business
combination undertaken in phases/stages, the previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is measured at fair value and
the difference between its fair value and carrying amount is
recognised in goodwill. There is a choice, on the basis of each
acquisition, to measure the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets. The Group
has chosen to recognise the non-controlling interest at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.
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78

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS 27 (Revised) (continued)

As the Group has early adopted HKFRS 3 (Revised), it is required
to early adopt HKAS 27 (Revised) at the same time. HKAS 27
(Revised) provides that the transactions undertaken with non-
controlling interests that do not result in the loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions and these transactions will
no longer result in goodwill or gains and losses. When control
is lost, any remaining interest in the entity is measured to fair
value and the difference between the fair value and the carrying
amount is recognised in the income statement.

SRTEENEE (E)
ERMBREREREIR (RET)REBEFHE
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(FRER])  MBARKRFRABTES LR
F279 (FIEFT) - BEFHERFE275R (K
RIRE  METH AR ERN R Z U EY
HERAEGIE WARIBEAR S AZER
FRTBELBHEREE - R EmbIHE M
ERARAZFSBERARAAENE MARER
FREER 2 ZRANKRARATER

The effect of the above early application of these two revised LR PHERAZMBLET LN RSB LGS
standards on the Group's consolidated financial statements is set M mik o BHINAT
out below:
2009
—EENF
HK$°000
FHET
Consolidated balance sheet and equity RtTZA=+—HzGeEAEEBERLER
at 31 December
Decrease in goodwill EE-Y: %% (84,111)
Decrease in special reserve BRI E R A (84,855)
Decrease in retained profits R84 AR A (744)
Consolidated income statement HE+-_A=+t—HLEFEZHENRER
for the year ended 31 December
Increase in administrative expenses TTECE RGN 744

Except for the above effect on acquisitions of non-controlling
interests, the early application of these two revised standards
has had no other material impact on the consolidated financial

statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)
The Group’s management makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal to the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2(j). The recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates (note 19) and assumptions. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of goodwill
and the impairment (if any) in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

(b) Allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts
The Group makes allowance for impairment of bad
and doubtful debts based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade and other receivables. Allowances
are applied to trade and other receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact carrying value of receivables and allowance for
impairment in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

(c) Write-down of obsolete and slow-moving inventories
The Group writes down obsolete and slow-moving
inventories to net realisable value based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectation of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Write-downs are applied to inventories
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the inventories may be obsolete or slow-moving. The
identification of obsolete or slow-moving inventories
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the inventories
and charges in the year in which such estimate has been
changed.
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TR - RIS DA R 5 AR R R H A R UK
HEEFREG - BN RERAERES
FE T I B B Al 51 o i T8 B0 2 B B R E A AT
BEEEK AZEZRBerERMGHR
EHHRAZBRERERERBZERER
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() BRRFHFEME

AEEMRBERSEFEEAZEF
B DRBEERIHEBGAR (BHERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB wRME (&)

o the year ended 31 December 2009 BEZZZNF+_A=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Income taxes

Deferred tax asset in relation to the unused tax losses of
approximately HK$148,800,000 (2008: HK$93,913,000)
was not recognised in the Group's consolidated balance
sheet. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future profits generated are less
than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in the income
statement for the period in which such a reversal takes
place.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
expenses in the year in which such determination is made.

Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by an entity.
Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are
attributable not only to property but also to other assets
used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services for administrative purposes. If these portions
can be sold separately (or leased out separately under a
finance lease), the Group's financial statements account
for the portions separately. If the portions cannot be sold
separately, the property is accounted for as investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is applied in
determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property.
The Group considers each property separately in making its
judgement.

4.

REXLot Holai'ng; Limited WRBHERERAT

BEREFEFTRAM (&)

(d)

(e)

FRiEH
REBZHGAEEBBERPUARADA
74 18 5 18 #9148,800,000/ 7T ( — BT N\
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BE A Z TR kRS
B8 o (W TR B 2 B R R SR M B TE 2 > - Al
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Bl MM ERSRTER

REBEBARFBRBBLPEMASH -EEU
PIEHBEREERHAH -RETEHKB
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H-REERBHRIHIERS D HMHER
EHMRAERERAB -WRXFERIK
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EZRBTEELEEZFENMBHRE
FER IR

REVEREZHRAMENESR
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REREME - EEL AR AEEEEZ
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REXLot Ho]d_ings Limited R PRAZRBERAH

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

MEBEHRRKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTThF+_A=+—HIFE

5. TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/ 5. HEE -H4WARHEMKRE (FE) B8

(LOSSES), NET

Turnover represents commission income and handling fee
income, interest income and income from provision of lottery

machines and related services.

An analysis of the Group's turnover, other income and other

BEEEARWARFEERA  FIRRARE
HE R AR UA -

AEBMEEE AR AREMURE (BE)

gains/(losses), net is as follows: FEAOWET :
2009 2008
—ETAF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Turnover BN
Commission income and handling fee income A& WA R FEE WA 4,765 5,515
Interest income from KEMTEEZFEWA
- banks —R1T 10 145
— margin clients —-FREP 397 5,433
— loan receivables — R E K 6,825 11,393
Income from provision of lottery machines and 2 it % Z# & 18 B IR & U A
related services 1,260,072 1,150,514
1,272,069 1,173,000
Other income Hir g A
Interest income on bank deposits RITIFERFE WA 698 1,727
Government subsidy B 48 B - 339
Sundry income 1AW A 3,547 3,956
Dividend income from listed securities EmEHFZREWA 38 -
Rental income from KEUTEEZHESKA
— investment property —REME 140 63
— sub-letting of rented premises —HRAmESE 3,662 -
8,085 6,085
Other gains/(losses), net Hiblz, (B58) FHE
Net gains/(losses) on disposal of financial HEBBEERANEFENEH
assets at fair value through profit or loss BEZWE (EEB)FE 3,487 (4,002)
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets at  BBERIEAABFENSREEY
fair value through profit or loss AhERE (EBE) 16,009 (14,973)
Exchange losses i 5 E18 - (326)
19,496 (19,301)
1,299,650 1,159,784
Total interest income on financial assets not RBBEREREAREFENCRAEE
at fair value through profit or loss 2 HBF B A 7,930 18,698
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) _—

BB wRME (&)

o the year ended 31 December 2009 BEZZZNF+_A=+—HIFE

82

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments with
effect from 1 January 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard
that requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker for the
purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing their
performance. The chief operating decision makers of the Group
are the Group's Executive Directors. In contrast, the predecessor
Standard (HKAS 14 Segment Reporting) required an entity to
identify two sets of segments (business and geographical), using
a risks and returns approach, with the entity’s system of internal
financial reporting to key management personnel serving only as
the starting point for the identification of such segments. As a
result, following the adoption of HKFRS 8, the identification of
the Group's reportable segments has changed.

In prior years, the Group’s primary reporting format under HKAS
14 was business segments, comprising lottery business, financial
services and money lending. The application of HKFRS 8 has
resulted in a redesignation of the Group's reportable segments
as compared with the primary reportable segments determined
in accordance with HKAS 14. The Group's reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 are therefore as follows:

- Lottery business

- Financial services

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transactions are conducted in accordance
with the terms mutually agreed between the parties. The
amounts reported for the prior year have been restated in
conformity with the current year's presentation.

The Board assesses the performance of the business segments
based on profit before taxation without allocation of finance
income/(costs), which is consistent with those in the financial
statements.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as
provided to the Board for the purpose of resources allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2009 and 2008 is set out below.

7 EBE R

AEFBCDHEANR _ZZNF-—A-BRERZE
AW HMELFSRLENH - FRMBRE
FERFESHE ) —HWELER RELEDHER
BERARKREARS D 2 AMBBREZR MEEE
ERARAGEREHNANLRSE WD B EE
BEFEERR - AEB 2T ZREREAR
AEESQTESZ AR AT ER (FEE
FERE AR D BMIWE) REERURR RO HTT
ERAMAS M (XBRMER) MEERNTE
EIEABEHABTBRSE 2 EEERED
Bz At BERMEBTBRE
AR FEY - AEBEME N A< A7 AH K

-

RBEFE AEEREEEGHERFE 1457
E(BHHMERTERZRAN ZEDHLEBELER
% 2RBRBREFR - ERREFB LR
FIAREE2TERED A BABTBHBHRE
EFESFEHAKREAESHAETRS D - K
SEREEEMBREENFERI D Z2HED
BAEMmT

- ¥EEH
- SBRR®
DEEM SRR A ARKABE S - H M E R

SLiE!
RHBEFHRME 2 GFET EFEEHRZ
SHEOCTEINTAAFEZZTR

E=ZgREBBMEN (REBRERA (K
F)HE - BHESEAMBRRMINE— B0 5
EB OB RIEITH

RBE-_ZETZANFR T NF+_A=+—
AEFERETFTESSUIREREIES S
FAZEBAERHREDB2EREHIMT -
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REXLot Holdings Limited T2+ ¥IZRAR AT

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB EHRKE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTThF+_A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Business segments

(a) The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2009
and segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2009 are

DEER (E)

E3 Sk

(a) BE-_ZEZNF+-_A=+-HIFEZ
DEMEEER_TTNAF+_A=1+—8

as follows: ZOHEERBENT
As at and for the year ended
31 December 2009
R-ZEBEBEAF+ZA=+—-HBK
BEZALEE
Lottery Financial

business services Total

TEEK & B AR &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FET FET

Turnover 0 1,260,072 11,997 1,272,069

Segment results DEPELE 460,327 (774) 459,553

Net unallocated expenses Ko ram L g5 (9,316)

Profit before taxation B B A1 5 ) 450,237

Taxation B8 (34,082)

Profit for the year NG i K 416,155
Assets BE

Segment assets o EE E 3,445,365 71,388 3,516,753

Unallocated assets RKOBEE 274,722

Total assets WEE 3,791,475
Liabilities afE

Segment liabilities DEEE 264,716 34,893 299,609

Unallocated liabilities RKoEEE 45,195

Total liabilities waE 344,804
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB wRME (&)

““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZZNF+A=+—HIFE

6.

(a)

REXLot Holdings Limited SRR R RARA T

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) oEER (&)
Business segments (continued) B (E)
(continued) (a) (&)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZZENF+_A=+—BILFE
and segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2008 are ABEBERNR_ZTZENF+_A=+— EI
as follows: ZOBEERBENT
As at and for the year ended
31 December 2008
RZZEZENF+ZA=+—HK
HEZBIEFE
Lottery Financial
business services Total
FEER © it AR 7% A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FET FET
Turnover B 1,150,514 22,486 1,173,000
Segment results DEPELE 424,407 (73,726) 350,681
Net unallocated expenses AOBHAZFE (8,466)
Profit before taxation B B4 A Vg A 342,215
Taxation | (51,414)
Profit for the year NE E 290,801
Assets BE
Segment assets nEE E 2,815,434 251,391 3,066,825
Unallocated assets ADPEEE 281,378
Total assets BEE 3,348,203
Liabilities af&
Segment liabilities DEEE 251,158 24,355 275,513
Unallocated liabilities Fpak =K 12,135
Total liabilities FEN=NE

287,648
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REXLot Holdings Limited T2+ ¥IZRAR AT
Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

MEBEHRRKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTThF+_A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEIER (&)
Business segments (continued) KoM (E)
(b) Other segment information (b) EBEth7sEH

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-_ZENF+-A=+—-BHLFE

Lottery Financial
business services Total
KREK S E R &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Other information H & R
Depreciation and amortisation P& B IH 49,301 510 49,811
Allowance for impairment of bad 53 BR 5 (B & &
and doubtful debts 68 - 68
Bad debts written off EIRMH 252 170 422
Capital expenditure - ENET 67,160 - 67,160
For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTZNF+_A=+—HLEE
Lottery Financial
business services Total
FEER S ERE A&F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FrET
Other information E &
Depreciation and amortisation P8 B g 30,048 995 31,043
Allowance for impairment of bad 3 BR 5 (B & &
and doubtful debts - 44,995 44,995
Bad debts written off 12 AR 8 - 194 194
Capital expenditure BEARFAX 71,163 530 71,693
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REXLot Holdings Limited ﬁfq:‘%ﬁﬂﬁﬁpﬂﬂa
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB wRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-ZZZNF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (&)
Geographical segments i & 5 &P

AEBEBOBRMEEZREK-

The Group’'s business segments operate in two main
geographical areas.

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2009
RZBREAE+ZA=ZT-HREERALFE

Segment
results and
profit/(loss)
before Total Total Capital
Turnover taxation assets liabilities expenditure
S
RERBEAT
B/
RS (B8) mEE BaE BARX
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong &% 11,997 (10,090) 76,610 80,088 -
The PRC H 1,260,072 460,327 3,714,865 264,716 67,160
1,272,069 450,237 3,791,475 344,804 67,160
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2008
RZEENGE+ZA=ZT-HRHEZEZBLEE
Segment
results and
profit/(loss)
before Total Total Capital
Turnover taxation assets liabilities  expenditure
DEER
KRBT
WA/
BEE (B1) BEE Baf BARHX
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET TET TET TET
Hong Kong e 22,486 (82,192) 533,712 36,500 530
The PRC FE 1,150,514 424,407 2,814,491 251,148 71,163
1,173,000 342,215 3,348,203 287,648 71,693
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REXLot Ho]d_ings Limited R PRAZRBERAH

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

MEBEHRRKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTThF+_A=+—HIFE

STAFF COSTS 7. EEHEX
2009 2008
—EENFE —EENF
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He ERUREDME 93,641 64,680
Bonuses TE4T - 1,316
MPF contributions BIE S HR 387 292
Social security costs g R A 3,592 1,824
Employee share option benefits & BB AR A 5,193 1,768
102,813 69,880
Less: staff costs capitalised into B EBERERZAEZEBEKK
intangible assets - 11,860
102,813 58,020
FINANCE COSTS 8. HMKEA
2009 2008
—EEAF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts HITERRBEZFE 1,064 1,121
Interest on client payables with ERTERBZENEPREFE
no fixed repayment terms 11 122
Interest on other loan wholly repayable BERAFRNBHERZEMERFE
within five years 533 -
Total interest expenses on financial liabilities MABERIIFERANBEFTEN
not at fair value through profit or loss CRMEBRZANERZ B 1,608 1,243
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REXLot Holdings Limited ﬁfq:‘%ﬁﬂﬁﬁpﬂﬂa

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB wRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-ZZZNF+-_A=+—HILFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

9. BRBAEF

The Group’s profit before taxation is stated after charging the AEBBRBANGEFHNAZFBIE BT SE:
following:
2009 2008
—EENFE —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Auditors’ remuneration IZ BT B &
- audit services —BZ R 2,479 1,500
— other services — H At AR 7% 385 350
Commission expense A& 8,177 2,078
Research and development costs 9T R AR AR 10,552 900

Loss on disposal of property, plant and

HEME BEEREBZER

equipment 8,853 3,160
Depreciation and amortisation on AT IE B 89T & K
— property, plant and equipment W BE RERE 41,775 28,855
— prepaid lease payments on land use rights — i R 2 TR R AV R 758 758
— intangible assets —EBREAE 7,278 1,430
Operating lease rentals in respect of MAEYMERBRBEZEEHERS
office premises and warehouse 22,942 11,174
10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 10. EEME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the AEEEZMEBELMHRAURES (RFHE
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies By E161EBEELT
Ordinance, is as follows:
2009 2008
—EENFE —EENF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees: wme
Executive Directors WITES 120 120
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIERITES 360 360
480 480
Other emoluments for executive Directors: BITESZHMMS
Salaries, housing, other allowances and He FERRYM HEMRMEK
benefits in kind BE MR 3,610 3,910
MPF contributions BE S MR 12 12
4,102 4,402
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REXLot Holdings Limited T2+ ¥IZRAR AT
Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

MEBEHRRKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTThF+_A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EEME (&)
(a) Independent Non-executive Directors (a) BIAFFTES
The fees paid to Independent Non-executive Directors were ERNTEUFNTESE 2EEOT
as follows:
2009 2008
—ETAF —ZET)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
YUEN Wai Ho B8 5 120 120
CHOW Siu Ngor ;N5 120 120
LEE Ka Lun F R B 120 120
360 360
There were no other emoluments payable to the FANBMEEMENTEIFENTES
Independent Non-executive Directors during the years. In BE o ltoh AEBEWEN TERNESHE
addition, no remuneration was paid by the Group to any of ERMAREBE S INAE 2 BN SGRE 2
the Directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the WE(ZZEENF |) -
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2008: Nil).
(b) Executive Directors (b) HITESE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions emoluments
e 2R BRIKEF
ik BEER® T EIME R MesmsE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Fz FHz FH7 FHT
2009 —EENF
Executive Directors: WITESE:
CHAN How Chung, Victor BRER - 3,610 12 3,622
BOO Chun Lon AR U B 120 - - 120

120 3,610 12 3,742
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB wRME (&)

““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZZNF+A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (continued)

11.

(b) Executive Directors (continued)

10.

REXLot Holdings Limited SRR R RARA T

BEEMS (8)
(b) BITEE (H)

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions emoluments
He REMR RIKAEF
we BE e FHEIHER B 42 %8
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FHET FHET
2008 —BINF
Executive Directors: WITEE:
CHAN How Chung, Victor BRER - 3,910 12 3,922
BOO Chun Lon AR U 5 120 - - 120
120 3,910 12 4,042
There was no arrangement under which any Director FAWEET L EMNESEURELRER
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the BEMME 22 b REEWEN T
years. In addition, no remuneration was paid by the Group FMEEMSERMAREBR R IMAELZ
to any of the Directors as an inducement to join, or upon HESRB 2 HE(ZEENE &) -
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
(2008: Nil).
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 11. AEBEHFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the FArEERERaTMA T z2HBE—% (=
Group, one (2008: one) was a Director of the Company whose ZTNF: —RB)ARAESZ EMeEHR L
emoluments were included in the disclosures in note 10 above. XHFI0 - EBRUE(ZZEZNF ME)AL
The emoluments of the remaining four (2008: four) individuals ZHEmT
were as follows:
2009 2008
—EENF ZZTENF
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUREENZ 6,118 5,391
MPF contributions B e R 48 36
6,166 5,427
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11.

12.

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

MEBEHRRKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-TTAG+-A=+—BLFE N

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)
Their remuneration was within the following bands:

11.

EERSHFEMAL (B)
WEZHME@ELWT

2009 2008

—EEBhF —ZEENF

Number of Number of

employees employees

EEAH EE AR

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T &2,000,000/8 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T %£2,500,000/%5 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7c 3,000,000/ 7T = 1
4 4

In addition to the above, one of the employees was granted
share options of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2009 and 2008. Details of the share option scheme are set out
in note 34.

TAXATION

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax is made in the financial
statements as the Group has no estimated assessable profits for
the year (2008: Nil).

One of the jointly controlled entities, Beijing Guard Libang
Technology Co Ltd, and two of the subsidiaries, J7 & iR 48 5 & &l
K AP AT and Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd, of the
Group's lottery business in the PRC are subject to a preferential
tax rate of 15% as they are recognised as high technology
enterprises for the year ended 31 December 2009.

According to the provisions stipulated in the tax circular, Caishui
[2000] No. 25, one of the subsidiaries of the Group's lottery
business in the PRC, HEEEE X BEIRBR AR,
from income tax for two years commencing from the first year

is exempted

of profitable operations, followed by a 50% reduction for
the following three years. The first profit-making year of this
subsidiary was 2007 and thus it enjoyed 50% reduction for the
year ended 31 December 2009. The applicable income tax rate
for current year was 12.5%.
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bR EXFTEIN REBEZEZZETRFER_ZTZT)\
FH+_A=Z+—REFR HP-—EBEEERK
SEHERE - BRABRE S 2 IEHRM T
34

Bi1R

F B 7 65 B 2 25 4F 2 3 R AR e ik 5 R BRI -
Bt - 7 B 7 3R R R I B E R OB NS R
—ZTEENFE|E) o

AEBEYEREBED RN BEZ KRAZEHE
BIRKEFABNKAERAFDRMKNE R A
EEREE AR RERA BRI T BLEHIE
BRMARARTHZIS%EERIXHR  REA/ZS
RARBE_ZZAF+ A=+ —RALEFE
WRERBHBEMEZE-

mﬁﬁﬁxﬂﬁﬁinmmwﬁﬂ%Z%ﬁ’$
ERREBER —FXRPREZHBARER
%ﬁ BRI AR AR HE EEFFERN
FRRPEMNETEE  BER = F AR -
HEBARZEEENFEA-SSLF At
REBEZZZAF+ZA=T—HBLEFEAR
FHB-AFEZEHAMESHER12.5% °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB wRME (&)

““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZZNF+A=+—HIFE

12. TAXATION (continued) 12. B\ (&)

Two of the subsidiaries of the Group’s lottery business in the REBEEEBRS IZ?@%W?“ 7Y
PRC, Shenzhen Kingsail Software Tech Co Ltd and JF3I T B 4% MR M B R 2 7 RORIITE R M%ZTJ% g
HIERERS AR AT were established and operate at the BR7%H R A AR H Ii%ﬂlli%/ﬁ%ﬁﬁii&%“M'
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone of the PRC for which the ZRFEER-_ZEZEN\FR_ZTZNF2HEHRAESR
applicable preferential tax rate was 18% and 20% for 2008 and HEDNAI18%K20% WHERBE_ZT—F
2009 respectively and is increased to 22%, 24% and 25% for F T ——FRZT—ZFF+ZA=+—HIE
the years ending 31 December 2010, 2011 and 2012 onwards, FEEME22%  24% K%25% °

respectively.

According to the provisions stipulated in the tax circular, AR IR T 75 48 A0 R 3 B (b 7 [2009]5058% 5T BA 2 1%
Jingdishuigi [2009] No. 50, one of the subsidiaries of the X ARERRERBER KN EZHEAF
Group’s lottery business in the PRC, ¥ A (L 5) BRI AR HBRE (EFR)BRBERARBE-FTTAFE
N A], is exempted from income tax for two years commencing ATMERBRMMAEN MBEREE-F—=
from 2009, followed by a 50% reduction for the following three F b= F AR E BB

years to 2013.

The applicable income tax rate for the remaining subsidiaries of ARAKREERXRGZHARIE AR Z 25 H
the Group’s lottery business in the current year is 25% (2008: EEEf(ma)eEn B&FEArNAF
15% to 25%) as their tax holiday and concession periods, if any, FEZBAMGHREER25% (ZFFT/\F:15%
have expired. £25%) °

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income HRAEWRZRANNBR 2 HIBERIE

statement represents:

2009 2008
—EENF —ETN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FrET
Current tax: B AR -
- Hong Kong profits tax —BBNIE %Fu = -
— PRC income tax —HEMREH 33,623 22,299
— under/(over)provision in respect of - BEEERETR
previous year (FREB R 3,301 (425)
36,924 21,874
Deferred tax: EAERIE :
Deferred taxation relating to the origination EREEREDERER ZIRERE
and reversal of temporary differences (H1at25)
(note 25) (2,190) 29,448
Attributable to change in tax rates (note 25) TR &8 fE(L (H7725) (652) 92
Taxation charge HEX 34,082 51,414
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

MEBEHRRKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE_TTNF+_A=+—HIEFE =

12. TAXATION (continued) 12. BiE (&)
The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from N B bR A )ﬁl Mz BIERIER L2858 (A
the theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic HRAREEE AR RN AR EFTHE)EEN
taxation rates applicable to profit of the consolidated companies T~
is as follows:
2009 2008
—EThE —ETENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&ET
Profit before taxation R 54 Al g A 450,237 342,215
Taxation at the domestic income tax rate of RS E16.5%

16.5% (2008:16.5%) (=% 7/\¢ 16.5% )zt & 2 F18 74,288 56,466
Tax effect of income not subject to taxation BARMBAZHEBELE (16,549) (14,473)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TRz A 2 BIERE

taxation purposes 6,197 5,040
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses R EEB BB E (1,868) (1,059)
Tax effect of temporary differences AERERER MBS

not recognised 131 1,086
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZBBEBERCHERE 6,659 10,716
Effect of tax exemptions granted to FEMBARERHERE CHE

the PRC subsidiaries (37,069) -
Under/(over)provision in previous year ii% BAR/ (BEEE) 3,301 (425)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEEERGEE ZHB AT Z

operating in other jurisdictions NEE RS2 (356) (6,029)
Change in opening deferred taxation EANEEEHM S| Bz B

balances resulting from changes R IR L e

in applicable tax rates (652) 92
Taxation charge I H 34,082 51,414
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB wRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-ZZZNF+-_A=+—HILFE

13.

14.

15.

DIVIDENDS 13. K&
2009 2008
—EENFE —EENF
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET

Interim dividend declared and paid of IR KR HRR R E ER

0.18 HK cent (2008: Nil) per ordinary share 018 (ZTENF - ) 13,633 -

Proposed final dividend of 0.43 HK cent BEAKHR SR T ®R0.438L
(2008: Nil) per ordinary share (ZZZENF:|) 33,083 -
46,716 -

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company is dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company to the extent of the profit of approximately
HK$213,120,000 (2008: loss of approximately HK$3,290,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share
The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of shares in
issue during the year.

REEZRERARBAFT AR AR ERE K
RBEFREG LAER HAEE-

14. AR EBFEABEFERF

AR FAEABMLFE RS MIZEZMNDO
213,120,000 T (Z2EZENF :FHEY
3,290,000/ L) R AR R MER P EIE ©

15. BREF
(a) BREFEF
EREABMNBEZARNFRER A AREMN
FREENGAFAD BTN Z NEF5
BEtHE -

2009 2008
—EBh%E —TEN\%
Profit attributable to equity holders of RRRERFE ARIER T
the Company (in thousand HK$) (F&mT) 424,581 267,641
Weighted average number of ordinary BT B METHE
shares in issue (in thousand) (FAR) 7,495,753 7,282,833
Basic earnings per share BRERZRR 5.66 cents 1l 3.68 cents 1l
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

MEBEHRRKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTThF+_A=+—HIFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 15. BRER (8)

(b) Diluted earnings per share
The diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit for the year and on the weighted average number
of ordinary shares, being the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on deemed exercise of all share options
outstanding during the year.

(b)

BREERR

TREE RN RREE G MR A SRR
MEFHE RAESREARNZER
BRETEBRNEFHEEBRIRFAR
RETEMARTEBREMEERTZ
BB TSR

2009 2008
—ZEEREF ZETNF
Profit for the year, used in the basic and AFEEEF AU ESRERKL
diluted earnings per share calculation BERA (THET)
(in thousand HK$) 424,581 267,641
Weighted average number of ordinary RAUGFEERERRF 2 FRNE BT
shares in issue during the year used TimARniE T8 (FR)
in the basic earnings per share
calculation (in thousand) 7,495,753 7,282,833
Weighted average number of ordinary BERFANEABRETEMARTE
shares assumed to have been issued at  B& AR i M (8 317 2 EmAR hn g
no consideration on deemed exercise FHE(FR)
of all share options outstanding during
the year (in thousand) 44,483 39,022
7,540,236 7,321,855
Diluted earnings per share TR E AT 5.63 cents 1l 3.66 cents 1l
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

FhF+_A=t—HLFE

16. X -BERRE

REXLot Holdings Limited WRBHERERAT

The Group xE
Furniture, Plant
Leasehold Leasehold Lottery fixtures and and Motor
buildings  improvements machines  equipment machinery vehicles Total
HENE B %8 )
HEEF £ YRE k& BEREE RE &it
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET TET FEr FEr TET FEr
(Note)
(Hit)
Cost BA
At 1 January 2008 E@:??/\i*ﬂ —B 3,701 10,568 81,862 22,345 24,346 6,133 148,955
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries WERBARMRES - - - 801 1177 250 2,228
Additions ﬁ‘ﬁ - 6,822 10,335 8,040 26,458 2,948 54,603
Disposals and write off HE R - - - (1,124) (5,809) (610) (7,543)
Reclassified from investment property Txﬁ%%iﬁ AE(HiH18)

(note 18) 18,497 - - - - - 18,497
Exchange realignment MNEFE 231 3 5,116 579 1,522 361 8,131
At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009 =%/ \Er A=+-R

ZENE-A-H 2,429 17,712 97,313 30,641 47,694 9,082 224,871

Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries WERBLRRES - 240 - 5,048 - 703 5,991
Additions /T‘E - 5492 16,600 10,199 33,290 1,579 67,160
Disposals and write off HE R - - (13,545) (94) (11,807) (484) (25,930)
Reclassification i# P8 - - 5,629 (5,629) - - -
At 31 December 2009 R=BBAE+ZA=1-H 22,429 23,444 105,997 40,165 69,177 10,880 272,092
Accumulated depreciation ?‘Hﬁﬁ
At 1 January 2008 NZEEN\E-A-H 802 5,056 25,034 17,895 9,121 1,602 59,510
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries W%WE AfEE - - - 579 563 128 1,270
Charge for the year TEEMR 501 1,718 16,259 2,19 7,259 924 28,855
Disposals and write off e R 8 - - - (745) (3,136) (474) (4,355)
Exchange realignment NERE 50 29 1,564 315 570 95 2,623
At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009 R=ET\E+ZA=1+—-AR

RZZENE-A-R 1353 6,803 42,857 20,238 14,377 2,275 87,903
Avrising on acquisitions of subsidiaries YERBRAMEE - 73 - 2,698 - 29 3,063
Charge for the year REEMR 501 2,335 13,518 4228 19,759 1434 41,775
Disposals and write off & R - - (12,117) (29 (3,995) (336) (17,077)
Reclassification ENRE - - 1,921 (1,921) - - -
At 31 December 2009 RZBEAF+=A=1-A 1,854 9211 45,579 25,214 30,141 3,665 115,664
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2009 RZBEAETZAZ1-H 20,575 14,233 60,418 14,951 39,036 7215 156,428
At 31 December 2008 RZEENE+ZA=1-A 21,076 10,909 54,456 10,403 33,317 6,307 136,968
Note: HaF

All leasehold buildings are situated outside Hong Kong and are held

under medium term leases.

The Company

The Company has no property, plant and equipment as at 31

December 2009 (2008: Nil).

FARERTHUREENIMEE - WIAPIBLEE -

¥ NN
ViN/NEETDy S
BB K&

Hw(ZF

ATZTAFE+-_A=Z+—BLEYE .
TNF E)

Annual Report 2009 =ZBAFEFH



REXLot Ho]d_ings Limited HZRPRAZRBRAF]

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTThF+_A=+—HIFE

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE RIGHTS 17. THERAEZBEAFHEONTR
The Group rEHE
2009 2008
—EENFE —EENF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost 2%
At beginning of the year REH] 38,063 5,319
Reclassified from investment property REEWMESEHHE (HiF18)

(note 18) - 32,639
Exchange realignment SN EE 37 B - 105
At end of the year RELK 38,063 38,063
Accumulated amortisation g £
At beginning of the year REH] 1,185 409
Amortisation for the year PGSR 7 758 758
Exchange realignment SN HE ) B - 18
At end of the year INECSFES 1,943 1,185
Net book value REFE
At end of the year RF R 36,120 36,878

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights are
outside Hong Kong with medium term leases.

At 31 December 2009, bank borrowings of approximately
HK$56,818,000 (2008: HK$13,132,000) were secured on
leasehold buildings and land use rights for the carrying values
of approximately HK$17,757,000 (2008: HK$18,127,000) and
HK$31,220,000 (2008: HK$31,930,000) respectively (note 38).

The Company
The Company has no prepaid lease payments on land use rights
as at 31 December 2009 (2008: Nil).
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AEERESEL MM ERENESCNE
BEHIN FHATHEE -

R-ZZEZEAE+_A=Z+—HB A&Y
56,818,000/ 7t (= ZF T )\ :13,132,000%
L) ZRITEEUEREES B4 A17,757,000
BLT(ZZTZTNF:18,127,00087m) &
31,220,000 L (=ZZZ )\ :31,930,000
BrI)zHERBF R G AEEER (T
38)

ZNVN
ARAR-_FBTENE+ A=+ AL E LM
EREZANBEAONR(ZZETNE E) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB HRME (&)

““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZZNF+A=+—HIFE

REXLot Holdings Limited SRR R RARAT

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 18. REWH
The Group rEHE
2009 2008
—EEAF —ZET)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Valuation fhfE
At beginning of the year NG 962 49,034
Reclassified to leasehold buildings (note 76) EMOEABERT (fit16) = (18,497)
Reclassified to prepaid lease payments EMOBEATHMEREZ
on land use rights (note 17) TERTEL TR (Haz17) - (32,639)
Exchange realignment SN B - 3,064
At end of the year NG 962 962

The investment property of the Group is situated outside Hong
Kong and held under medium term lease. It is held for rental
purpose. The investment property of the Group was revalued
as at 31 December 2009 on the open market existing use basis
by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional

valuers.

The Company

The Company has no investment property as at 31 December

2009 (2008: Nil).

AEBZREMEMRERFEIN WA HHEL
A UERBKRBREEAEHA AEE2RE
MER_TZNF+_A=+—HBE BBV
EEMERR BEFERFRARRARTSER

EERERETEM-

LN
ARRAR-_ZBENF+_A=+-RIELRE
ME(ZZENF HE) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-TTAGF+-A=+—BLFE

19. GOODWILL 19. B8
HK$'000
FET
Cost R A

At 1 January 2008 RZZEZENF—HA—H 595,357
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 46) WEEH B A B FTE L (Hfit46) 237,948
Arising from increase of investments in subsidiaries KRB AR 2 RE LN EE 645,717

At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009 RZZEZENF+A=1+—HK
—EENF—-A—A 1,479,022
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 46) W B o BB A R P EE A (MY at46) 215,244
At 31 December 2009 R-BEEAF+=ZA=+—H 1,694,266
The carrying amount of goodwill represents the goodwill arising MECEEERRUBRENTZXEBMESL

from acquisition in investments of lottery business.

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the Group
has assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill arising from
acquisition in investments of lottery business by reference to the
cash-generating units’ value in use and determined that such
goodwill has not been impaired. The recoverable amount for
the cash-generating units in relation to the lottery business was
determined based on value-in-use calculations, which use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management covering the ten year operating period of business
with discount rate of 14.12%. The discount rate used reflects
specific risks relating to the business and the growth rates of
3% are in line with the forecasts adopted by the industry.

In the opinion of the management, the lotteries industry in
China will grow along with its economy in the coming decades
and remains as the main contribution to the good causes
which benefit the general public in China, and is similar with
the lottery history of other countries of the World. As a major
participant in the lottery industry in PRC over 5 years, the
Group possesses an in-depth knowledge of the industry. The
management believed that the projected cash flows based on
financial budgets/forecasts for a period of 10 years is reliable.

The goodwill is included in the lottery business segment
disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements.
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BB HRME (&)

““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZZNF+A=+—HIFE

REXLot Holdings Limited WRBHERERAT

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BREE
The Group rEH
Deferred
Computer development  Operating Technical
software costs right  know-how Total
3135k i
EREH %N FS- ¢ EMAH &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Cost BA
At 1 January 2008 RZEENF—F—H 5,785 6,423 29,947 58,823 100,978
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries WERBARMESE 3,396 - - - 3,396
Additions NE - 17,090 - - 17,090
Exchange realignment SNEE A 362 401 1,872 - 2,635
At 31 December 2008 and RZZENF+ZA=+-HK
1 January 2009 —“ZTNF-A—H 9,543 23,914 31,819 58,823 124,099
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries WENBRRIMES 284 - - - 284
At 31 December 2009 R-ZBEAE+ZA=+-8H 9,827 23,914 31,819 58,823 124,383
Accumulated amortisation ESE &
At 1 January 2008 R-ZEN\E-A—H 3,486 1,854 - - 5,340
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries WEMRBRRIMES 113 - - - 113
Exchange realignment SN A B 218 116 - - 334
Charge for the year AEENR 748 682 - - 1,430
At 31 December 2008 and RZZEENFFTZA=+—AR
1 January 2009 “ETNE—-R—H 4,565 2,652 - - 7,217
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries WEMRBRRAIMES 225 - - - 225
Charge for the year AEENR 900 6,378 - - 7,278
At 31 December 2009 R-BEEAF+=-A=+—H 5,690 9,030 - - 14,720
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2009 RZBEAF+ZA=t-H 4,137 14,884 31,819 58,823 109,663
At 31 December 2008 RZZT\F+-_A=+—H 4,978 21,262 31,819 58,823 116,882
(@) Computer software of carrying value of approximately (a) B FERTAE 494,137,000 70 (ZZTZ)\4F -
HK$4,137,000 (2008: HK$4,978,000) is the intangible assets 4,978,000/ 7T) A ZX TS U IE REA R &

acquired and possessed by the lottery business. The intangible

assets have definite useful lives and are amortised over their AU RERAEEHFE#E-

estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

WEE ZENVEEABARTMFR WRME
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BHRME CE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-TTAGF+-A=+—BLFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(b)  Deferred development costs of carrying value of approximately
HK$14,884,000 (2008: HK$21,262,000) represent expenditure
incurred by the Group on development of computer software and
related technology for the lottery business of the Group in order to
meet with the market development and the specific requirements
of the lottery business and its individual customers.

The intangible assets have definite useful lives and are amortised
over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.

(c)  Operating right of carrying value of approximately HK$31,819,000
(2008: HK$31,819,000) represents expenditure incurred by the
Group on obtaining an operating right for supplying the system
and equipment in a lottery centre. The operating right is renewable
without additional conditions and payment if the Group provides
satisfactory services to the customers. The Group intends to renew
the operating right indefinitely and evidence supports its ability to
do so. There has been no compelling challenge to the operating
right renewal in other provinces. The technology developed is not
expected to be substituted by another competitor at any time in
the foreseeable future. Therefore, the operating right is expected to
contribute to the Group’s net cash inflows indefinitely.

Accordingly, the operating right is therefore treated as having
an indefinite useful life and is not amortised until its useful
life is determined to be finite. The operating right is tested for
impairment annually.

(d)  Technical know-how of carrying value of approximately
HK$58,823,000 (2008: HK$58,823,000) represents the technology,
technical information, know-how and experience in relation to the
lottery business injected by a joint venture partner. The useful life
shall cover the joint venture period which shall continue in effect
until the termination of the joint venture agreement or the joint
venture partner ceases to be a shareholder, whichever is the earlier.
The Directors have opined that the technical know-how has an
indefinite useful life and is tested for impairment annually.

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the Group
has assessed the recoverable amounts of operating right and the
technical know-how based on value-in-use calculations, which
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the management covering the ten-year operation period
of the business with discount rate of 14.12%. The discount
rate used reflects specific risks relating to the business and the
growth rate of 3% is in line with the forecasts adopted by the
industry.

The Company

The Company has no intangible assets as at 31 December 2009
(2008: Nil).
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(b)
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IRAE R EE B AR BRI (E 4914,884,00008 7T (—EF
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ggo
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21.

22.

““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZNF+A=+—HIFE

DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF LEASEHOLD LAND
USE RIGHTS

The amount represents deposit paid to the relevant government
authority for acquisition of a medium term leasehold land
use rights in the PRC. The amount includes relevant deed tax
thereon capitalised. The relevant land use right certificate
is expected to be issued upon fully settlement of the
consideration. Further details are set out in note 41(a).

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

21.

22.

REXLot Holdings Limited SRR RRARAT

BAHELHEREZTE
ZoRERNETRTHEAE L nEREMND
SN TERBAREZ S ZeWBREACE

M2 BRARN - AHREERERSEEEH
THE MR - — S F B RN E41()

R DRz s

The Company

¥ NN
2009 2008
—ETAE —ZEENF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Unlisted share, at cost FEEMARG - R 291,309 289,632
Impairment losses LB &5 18 (127,000) (127,000)
164,309 162,632
Amounts due from subsidiaries i DN S 2,432,659 2,387,548
Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts R ERE (66,000) (66,000)
2,366,659 2,321,548
2,530,968 2,484,180
Amount due from a subsidiary JE s Ff /BB 1 R R IE 222,000 -

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free
and have no fixed term of repayment. In the opinion of the
directors, the amounts of HK$2,432,659,000 will not be
repayable within 12 months of the balance sheet date and are
accordingly classified as non-current. The remaining amount
of HK$222,000,000 is repayable within one year. The amounts
due from subsidiaries of approximately HK$555,701,000 (2008:
HK$699,675,000) were impaired. The amount of allowance
for impairment was HK$66,000,000 as at 31 December 2009
(2008: HK$66,000,000). It is assessed that a portion of these
receivables is expected to be recovered. All other balances
of amounts due from subsidiaries are neither past due nor

impaired.

FEUTHTE A B RIE AR R B R EETE
KE - EHER A 2,432,659,000/8 5T 2 FE A
eREEARNREARESRE By BEAIERS
B &4 T4 %8222,000,0008 TER —F XN E
2 o JE UYL B A Bl 2 FRIBXY555,701,000/ 7T (=
T T\ F:699,675,0008 L) ERE-R_2F
NE+ZA=+—HHRFERE/R66,000,000/%
7T (ZZZ )\ : 66,000,000 7T ) ° iR &F 14 -
T8 ER 7% 55 FE WK TE — 3010 0] W (E) « B A L fth FE Uk
MEARFEAHRYERHSRE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTThF+_A=+—HIFE

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

The Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, has a 50%
interest in a joint venture, Happy Sun Technologies Ltd and its
subsidiaries (together as “Happy Sun Group”). The following
amounts represent the Group's 50% share of the assets and
liabilities as at 31 December 2009, and sales and results of the
joint venture for the year. They are included in the Group's

balance sheet and income statement as follows:

23.

REELENES

AEBBEBE2EAMBLARKAEARD %
Happy Sun Technologies Ltd & E M@ A7) (4
78 [Happy SunfE M ] )50% 1 # T 5] &% A K

EELEZAELEER_ZZE

NE+ZA=+—

BzBEERBE URAFEZHEREED
50%Em - WERERASEEERBER LR

KN BBETREMT:

2009 2008
—ZEENF —ETNE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Assets EE
Non-current assets ERBEE 100,534 95,900
Current assets mEBEE 95,509 85,589
196,043 181,489

Liabilities 8E&
Non-current liabilities RBEE - 635
Current liabilities mEAaE 4,843 4,488
4,843 5,123
Net assets EEFE 191,200 176,366
2009 2008
—ZEENF —ETNE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Income WA 60,533 54,440
Expenses A 42,896 29,211
Profit before taxation B B A1 4 A 17,637 25,229
Taxation Bi1E 2,803 3,049
Profit after taxation B Bt 12 5 A 14,834 22,180

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest

in the joint venture, and no contingent liabilities of the venture

itself.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZZNF+A=+—HIFE
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REXLot Holdings Limited SRR RRARA T

23. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 23. REELXNER (8)
At 31 December 2009, the Group's share of the joint ventures’ RZZEZNF+ZA=+—8 AKERETH
future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- BELEHOs e EERKRENZEES
cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: WERWNT -
2009 2008
—EENFE —EENF
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Land and buildings T RAEF
Within one year —F R 686 555
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZELF (BREEWF) 466 -
1,152 555
Details of the Group’s principal jointly controlled entities, which ZEENF+ZA=T—H AEEZEEH
are unlisted and limited liability companies, as at 31 December & I%U/aaa (BIELTRBEREEAF)MFE
2009 are as follows: /I
Particulars of
Place of Principal issued share

incorporation/

activities and

capital/registered

Effective

Name registration place of operation capital interest held
BITRA
=L B/ 5L i B TEXBRREBENY A EAFE FrisBRED
Happy Sun Technologies Ltd British Virgin Islands Investment holding 4 ordinary shares 50%
REBRXES in the PRC of US$1 each
R BLEITR B 2R AR BRREE
1Rz EBKR
FEFBEEER ORI BRAA PRC Investment holding UsD12,000,000 50%
e in the PRC 12,000,0003 7T
R BEETTREER
RINEMBHEERAR AR PRC Investment holding RMB54,606,000 50%
H in the PRC AR #54,606,0007T
R BEITIR B 2R
Beijing Guard Libang Technology Co Ltd PRC Provision of systems and ~ RMB89,180,000 50%
ERXENAREARAA F equipment in the lottery A R #89,180,0007T
market in the PRC
R BEFET SR
B &L
24. STATUTORY DEPOSITS 24. FERS
Statutory deposits are the deposits in various exchanges and FEERERRERIFREEFMERAZLRRE
clearing houses relating to securities and futures dealing EEEXEBMNES-
businesses.
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| Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZZZNF+-_A=1+—HIFE =

25. DEFERRED TAXATION 25. EERHE
The Group rEH

(a) ERZELHEELE (BE)

(a) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised

Fair value
adjustments on
prepaid lease

payments on

Allowance for land use
impairment Other rights and Other
of loans deductible  buildings on Revaluation taxable
and other temporary business of temporary
receivables differences  combinations properties differences Total
ERAHRR
tHhEREL
ERRAM AREHAR
FEWFERE HbaAE  REFHMEZ HthERB
B ERER DMEDE BfiNX ERER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2008 WZEZNF-F—-H 1,627 484 (631) (3,226) (13,551) (15,297)
Attributable to changes in tax rates REEBEL (Hit12)

(note 12) (92) - - - - (92)
Exchange realignment SNERE - 30 9) (424) (701) (1,104)
Charged to the consolidated income A RERATH

statement (note 12) (Hi12) - (514) - - (28,934) (29,448)
At 31 December 2008 and RZZENF

1 January 2009 +ZA=+t-8Ak

“ERNAE-A-A 1,535 - (640) (3,650) (43,186) (45,941)
Attributable to changes in tax rates REZHER (Hit12)

(note 12) - - - - 652 652
Additions through acquisition of BRANEBREARZFE

subsidiaries (note 46) (Hd46) - - - - (2,659) (2,659)
Credited to the consolidated income s ABFARER

statement (note 12) (H#12) - - - - 2,190 2,190
At 31 December 2009 RZBENE

TZR=+-8 1,535 - (640) (3,650) (43,003) (45,758)
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25. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The Group (continued)

(a) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised (continued)
For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain
deferred tax assets/(liabilities) have been offset in
accordance with the conditions set out in HKAS 12. The

REXLot Holdings Limited ﬁfq:‘%ﬁﬂﬁﬁpﬂﬂa

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZZZNF+-_A=+—HILFE

25. IEFEBIR ()
EE(E)

(a) BRZELHEELE (BE) (&)
HREERBERZIMs ETEERES
E/(8E) BREFEGTERE 125

BIRIFIEE 20 REE

BEERABRZE

following is the analysis of deferred tax balances shown in ERIBABYTIT
the consolidated balance sheet:

2009 2008
—ZEENF —EENF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax liabilities BREFIEAE (47,338) (47,476)
Deferred tax assets BREBIEEE 1,580 1,535
(45,758) (45,941)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) have not been recognised in
respect of the following items:

(b) EEBHEEE(BE)URKATERE

THER

2009 2008
—EENF ZETN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Taxable temporary differences JERRTE By = £
— accelerated tax depreciation —IRFL BT & (88) -
Deductible temporary differences AR R E R
— decelerated tax depreciation —HERBIERE 3,128 3,615
- others —Hf 57,467 56,289
Tax losses B R A 148,800 93,913
209,307 153,817
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| Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-_TTNF+_A=+—HIEFE =

25. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 25. EEBIIE (4F)
The Group (continued) AEHE(E)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) have not been recognised in (b) BREMIEBEEE/(BFE)WARRUATELE
respect of the following items: (continued) TR (&)
Notes: it
(i) The deductible temporary differences do not expire under the () MREBRITHRE AINREREEL T
current tax legislation. Hy o
(i) Tax losses of approximately HK$48,022,000 (2008: (i) FAEERPEVEEBRELEZNBER
HK$4,596,000) arising from the Group's lottery business in #948,022,000%8 7T (== %)\ : 4,596,000
the PRC would expire in the fifth year commencing from the BI)BEELEBREFERAFERFER
year the loss incurred whereas tax losses of approximately MBEBRRITBE  NREBREBZ MR
HK$100,778,000 (2008: HK$89,317,000) arising from the D EBFTEE 4 2 BLAS 51 49100,778,0007 7T
Group's other business segments in Hong Kong do not expire —Z T )\ :89,317,000/% L) I T~ & 5|
under the current tax legislation. e
The Company AT
The Company has no temporary differences as at 31 December KARR ZEZNF+ A=+ —BUEYLH
2009 (2008: Nil). ZR(ZZTNF E)-
26. INVESTMENT DEPOSITS 26. REFT=®
The investment deposits represented the amounts paid for BEFTeEKENBAREMER BN &
acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries and were Et D AIERDEE - BETSERFREHY
therefore classified as non-current assets. The investment BIH o

deposits were fully realised during the year.

27. INVENTORIES 27. &
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEBhEF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials JRA L 61,521 50,235
Work-in-progress &G 2,851 11,219
Finished goods BIAK SR 35,557 18,221
99,929 79,675
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= REXLot Ho|<-:Ji.ng; Limited ﬁfﬂ:‘%ﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬂa
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZNF+A=+—HIFE

28. TRADE RECEIVABLES 28. EWEZERX

The Group
rEE

2009 2008
—EEBAF ZTT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Margin client receivables, net ERAFREFPERTRE 2,507 3,091
Other client receivables, net FEME A R PR FFRR 841 675
Broker receivables JE W48 40 BR 3R 6,316 945
Amounts due from clearing houses FEU B FTAR K - 2,152
Loan receivables, net FEWE FFH 1,478 196,370
Loan interest receivables, net FEWE ) BF 5 391 8,008
Trade receivables — Lottery business EREGER-—FRER 667,496 497,664
679,029 708,905
Margin client receivables are repayable on demand, bear FURABEPERNRERBEE URTMS

MEHE BHEBKAEITHNEFESESR
B R_ZZAF+_A=Z+—BHOHEYD
18,720,000 7t (ZZTZF )\ F : 12,895,000/

EFERRENEFARMENELNER

interest at prevailing market rates and are secured by clients’
securities listed on the Stock Exchange with market value of
approximately HK$18,720,000 as at 31 December 2009 (2008:

HK$12,895,000). No ageing analysis is disclosed for margin TT) °

client receivables as, in the opinion of the Directors, the ageing
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of
business of securities margin financing and broking.

The settlement terms of other client receivables, broker
receivables and amounts due from clearing houses are one to
two days after the trade date or are repayable on demand. The

age of these balances is within 30 days.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade
receivables approximate to their fair values. The Group generally
grants credit periods of 90 to 120 days to its trade receivables.

ME REOITEE TR BI2HE BE RS
REPRRZBRE DT

JRE M A R P BR R B MRS A0 BR AR I W A S PR
ERZEFHARG AR -—EMRIN ERE
B - L F R REKR R30RA

§$*W7%FE%Z?’3%@E?KZEEE@EEA‘ﬁ@*ﬁ
CAEE—BETRKE SHEFRIOE120RZ

1:.ﬁ
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28. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of loan receivables, loan interest receivables,
net and trade receivables — Lottery business is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTThF+_A=+—HIFE

28.

FEWE 5 BRMA (F)
M E R RUE RN EFE RIS 5 M5 —
FEEBHER

oM

As at 31 December 2009
R=ZBEAF+=ZRA=+—H

Loan
receivables
and loan Trade
interest receivables —
receivables, Lottery
net business Total
ERERR EKWEZS
EWER BRX—
FEFE KREK &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FHETT
Three months or less =AM - 482,202 482,202
One year or less but over three months —#F 8t A B =1 F I £ - 180,271 180,271
Over one year —F U E 1,869 5,023 6,892
1,869 667,496 669,365
As at 31 December 2008
RZZEZNF+ZA=+—H
Loan
receivables
and loan Trade
interest receivables —
receivables, Lottery
net business Total
FEWE R R JEWE 5
FEWE K AR —
FEFH MERER &5k
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FET FET
Three months or less =EAKAT 99,454 470,865 570,319
One year or less but over three months —#F st A B =& A M £ 101,221 18,556 119,777
Over one year —FUE 3,703 8,243 11,946
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZNF+A=+—HIFE

REXLot Holdings Limited SRR RRARAT

28. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 28. BWESHRR (&)
As of 31 December 2009, trade receivables of approximately RZZEZEANF+A=+—H BREFER
HK$69,795,000 (2008: HK$79,672,000) were impaired. The #169,795,000/8 7L ( —ZZFZ )\ : 79,672,000/
amount of the allowance for impairment was HK$69,779,000 of TIEHRE RZTETENF+ZA=+—8"
31 December 2009 (2008: HK$79,085,000). It is assessed that 1B B 18 3B 569,779,0008 7T (Z T TN\ F
a portion of these receivables is expected to be recovered. The 79,085,000/ 7T ) © 4% 5T 1t 1% 78 AR 50 1 FE W 30 T8
ageing analysis of these impaired receivables is as follows: % AT 4[] o 5% % B RUE B R IE 8 BR R 9 T 40
T

2009 2008
—EENFE —EENF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Three months or less past due BE=EAHUT - -

One year or less but over three months BH—F AT EBRBA=A
past due = -
Over one year past due AR — 69,795 79,672
69,795 79,672

As of 31 December 2009, trade receivables of approximately
HK$37,897,000 (2008: HK$20,558,000) were past due but not
impaired. These related to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. All trade
receivables that were past due in 2008 have been settled during
2009. The ageing analysis of these receivables is as follows:

RZETZAF+_A=+—B EREZEZFER
#937,897,000/ 7L ( ZZFZF )\ £ : 20,558,000/8
TT)EBEBERRE ZERBHEBRRZE
WEAIZEZHENBYE, RZ2ZETN\FE
BENFERRKESEFXHAERSETNFH
I E - ZERBRERNRE IO T

2009 2008

—EENF ZETN\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Three months or less past due BEA =B B KIAT 27,935 8,100
One year or less but over three months BE—F AT EBR=1E

past due 9,673 12,458

Over one year past due B HR R A — 289 -

37,897 20,558

In the opinion of the Directors, all of the other trade receivables
are neither past due nor impaired.

BE=RR MAEHMBKREZRFIGAREBS
HIRE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-_TTNF+_A=+—HIEFE =

28. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
Movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts are as follows:

28. EWESRA(B)

2009 2008

—EENEF —ETNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January n—HA—H 79,085 74,363
Exchange realignment SN 38 B = 83
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE - 44,610
Uncollectible amount written off AN AT [B] 45 3R 8 i 5 (9,300) (39,971)
Impairment losses written back VERIEYSEE:E] (6) -
At 31 December R+=—R=+—H 69,779 79,085

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written
off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is
the fair value of each class of receivables mentioned above.

29. UTILITY AND OTHER DEPOSITS
Utility and other deposits represent the deposits paid for the
rollout of lottery business operation including rental, machines
and equipment, projects and related utility deposits.

In the opinion of the Directors, all utility and other deposits are

neither past due nor impaired.
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112

30. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

30.

REXLot Holdings Limited SRR RRARAT

A AR H A FE R IE

The Group The Company
EEE NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAF —ETN\F —EZAF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FHET
Prepayments and other receivables TEA 3R R B b Ui 3R I8 385,459 273,989 1,459 1,468

The above balances as at 31 December 2009 represent
prepayments made to suppliers, lottery project related
prepayments, staff advances, sales of other assets and other

receivables.

As of 31 December 2009, other receivables of approximately
HK$11,044,000 (2008: HK$10,970,000) were impaired.
The amount of the allowance for impairment was
approximately HK$11,038,000 as of 31 December 2009
(2008: HK$10,970,000). The individually impaired receivables
mainly related to those which were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered.

In the opinion of the Directors, all of the other prepayments and
other receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

PR —ETAF+ A=+ B2 EHER
HEFINZ2BEMR ZEREEHBENSK 8
IHF - -HEEMEERE A4 EKRGRIE-

R-ZZEZAF+-A=+—8 HtERZRES
#711,044,000%8 7T (ZFZ /A% : 10,970,000/
TLEHRE - R_TZAF+=_A=+—8"
BB B E IR A 411,038,000 0 (22N
% :10,970,000%% 7T ) ° @ 5 & B R E 2 FE WK
BXEHEBEAMREGR mERETEEHA
Lz 8] 6 17 & W 3 TE o

BE=ZRA A EMBENREEMERRETR
EE MR E -
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30. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and

doubtful debts are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZZZANF+_A=+—HILFE

30. ENRREMERSE (&)
%%%2@@%%@@@?-

The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEBAF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January “—A—8 10,970 9,966
Exchange realignment SN B 37 B - 619
Impairment losses recognised EERREREE 68 385
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 11,038 10,970
31. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 3. BREREARENEZERMEE
OR LOSS
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EENF ZETN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Listed securities held for trading: BEREEZ ETES
Market value of equity securities listed BAELTRAZESFZME
in Hong Kong 23,064 9,311
The fair value of all equity securities is based on their current bid Fr B IR 33 E’] ARBENIRBEERZEEIRERE

prices in an active market.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented
within the section of operating activities as part of changes in —

working capital in the statement of cash flows.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other gains/(losses),

income statement (note 5).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB wmRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-ZZZNF+-_A=+—HILFE

32. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 32. RERBITHER
The Group The Company
AEEH AAT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEhF —ETN\F —BEAF —TENF
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Pledged bank deposits BEPRITIF K 16,875 - - -
Short term bank deposit RHBRITER 77,800 77,000 - -
Cash at banks RITRE
- general accounts ——REFR 229,936 147,894 16,142 3,574
- segregated accounts — B ERF 27,029 18,419 = -
Cash in hand FEES 1,518 730 = -
353,158 244,043 16,142 3,574
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposit was EHRITFERCERMER0.05% MFRER
0.05%, the deposit was due on 12 January 2010. ZE-ZFE-A+ZHIH-
The bank deposits of HK$16,875,000 have been pledged to #R17175016,875,000/8 L E M| TIRIT ERA
banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group EEEE—RBOTER(RBILERPERIMN Z
other than those in segregated accounts. EiR °
Cash and bank balances include the following amounts Re RBITESHRT  BETIARQABTNEER
denominated in currencies other than the Company’s functional (7)) LAONE B 51 (B 1) 5058 -

currency, HK dollars:

The Group
rEE

2009 2008

—EENF ZTETN\F

‘000 ‘000

FT FT

Euro BT 7 -
Malaysian Ringgits Bk 139 90
US dollars ETT 57 32
Renminbi ARHE 180,208 110,185
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

MBEHRRKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTThF+_A=+—HIFE

32. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the

33.

32.

RERBITHER ()

e RERMNE ReELREZEYERE

purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows: T5&IE:
The Group
AEEH
2009 2008
—EENFE —ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Cash in hand FERS 1,518 730
Short term bank deposit FEERITIE R 77,800 77,000
Cash at banks RITR S
- general accounts ——REP 229,936 147,894
Bank overdrafts (note 38) RITEZ (H77#38) (67) (1,026)
309,187 224,598
SHARE CAPITAL 33. B
Number
of shares Amount
BHEE k|
‘000 HK$'000
Fhg FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREBEICNBIZEBER
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2008, 31 December 2008 W=-ZZN\F—HA—H"
and 31 December 2009 ZEENFF+ZA=+—HBK
—ZEZAF+-_A=+—H 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 January 2008 RZZEZENF—HA—H 7,138,000 71,380
Exercise of share options TTIE RS AR 2 20,000 200
Issue of consideration shares BITRERD 254,000 2,540
Cancellation upon repurchase of i 18] 7R B B {7 B 5T 88
own shares (15,825) (158)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZENE+_A=+—H 7,396,175 73,962
Exercise of share options (Note) LRI (K7 aE) 194,000 1,940
At 31 December 2009 R-BEAF+=-A=+—H 7,590,175 75,902
Note: B E

During the year, 194,000,000 share options were exercised at an exercise
price of HK$0.3 each, resulting in an issue of 194,000,000 shares, for a
total consideration (before expenses) of HK$58,200,000.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 34, BRESE

The Group's share option scheme was adopted by the Group on
22 November 2002 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of enabling
the Group to grant share options to executives and employees
of the Group and other persons who have made contributions to
the Group as incentives and/or rewards for their contributions to
the Group or its subsidiaries.

According to the Scheme, the Board may grant share options to
the eligible participants as defined in the Scheme to subscribe
for such number of shares as the Board may determine. Share
options granted should be accepted within 30 days from the
date of offer. Upon acceptance of the share options, the grantee
shall pay HK$1.00 to the Group by way of consideration for the
grant.

The exercise price of share options shall be determined by the
Board, save that such price will not be less than the highest
of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (b) the average of the closing prices of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant, and (c) the nominal value of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Group must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Group on the
date of approval and adoption of the Scheme provided that
the Group may at any time seek approval from its shareholders
to refresh the limit to 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of approval by the shareholders in general meeting where
such limit is refreshed. Share options previously granted under
any share option scheme(s) of the Group (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such schemes
or exercised share options) will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the limit as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the share options granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Group
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
to each eligible participant in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue as at the date of grant. Share options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent Non-executive Directors
in excess of 0.1% of the Group's issued share capital on the
date of grant or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be
approved in advance by the Group’s shareholders.

AEER-_ZT_F+-A-+-_BRMELE
BBkt E ([ 8)) RRAEHAKE
FHEMZASETRAB RERAREMA
TREELRE UKB RSB REE R EE
FEERMMBARMEL ZEE -

Rigazatd BEEgAMZAEMEREZAER
SEATREBRENARBEETSTEE ZR
MEE - MREEREANZLOBMET30RR
Ao MR AR AR AR AT E R B
REMAEE .00 T2 R(E -

BREZOTEEAEESET ETBEN )
BORELAR (BAREER)EBMEA
WEXRELABEZBME: OROHEEZRHA
HAAEEXPERIMERBER LARZ
FIHRHE: OBEOEE (KBEsERE) -

T AR 45 5% A &) F AN B2 (3 4F (o] L 4t B A 5+ &)
EHzmARBRERZTZROEE LR TE
BEHERRKAZTHEAAREZEHITR
10% @ AR B Al AR R AR A S SRR
FEERRBEZERTRHIE B D HTRM10%
ZIRH - MNEtEET ZRGIF  REAREANE
Bz EMERE A B R L 2 BAE (BREIRE
ZEHEMDARITE CHEE BRAKEITRE
Z R B TWET AR -

REZEREERERBZAEMA121EA 8 (2
EREER) BEIEERNEE®RATREZ
FTEI R ASEE M A BRRE 2 E 2 B
E(BREETE CEERERTERBRE)M
EETERATHETZEBARNDEE T5BA
BREZEABBITRMNEBEZ1% BERAETEZRE
IBIERTESRLUCEREZEERG S
REHNEBAREEEHTRA0I%IEEBEES
75,000,000 7t BB 4C AN S B IR 3R B e it
i
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

For the year ended 31

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The period during which share options may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
share options can be exercised more than 10 years after they
have been granted. There is no general requirement that share
options must be held for any minimum period before they can
be exercised. The Scheme will expire on 22 November 2012.

The following table discloses movements in the Option Scheme:

During the year ended 31 December 2009:

MBEHRRKZE (CFE)

December 2009 HEZZZAF+=-ZA=+—HILFE

34. BRESTE (&)
EZeN 2 RNBATERE ZTEBER R
R B EARR R T RN AT R B R A o
RITEBREMNEZFBEREZ ZT BRI
B —MRRE A EER T —=—F+—H
“t+-HAEW-

TREEBRETS 228 :

HE-ZZNAF+-A=+—HBILFE:

Number of share options (000)

BREHR (TH)
Transferred ~ Transferred
from other to other
Date of Exercise Outstanding category category Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
offer to grant price per Exercisable at  duringthe  during the during during during at
Grantees options share period  01.01.2009 year year the year the year the year  31.12.2009
RZBBAE
R-BENE t=A
BRE -B-B ERERE EAERE =t-A
ERA RHEH BRITEE (il WATHE  RBER EMER FRRE RATE ERAN HARE
HKS
A1
Employees 06.07.2006 0.295 13.07.2006-12.07.2009 36,000 - - - - (36,000) -
B2
20.06.2007 0.790 09.07.2007-08.07.2010 36,000 - (20,000) - - - 16,000
(Note)
(Hit)
25.07.2007 1.130 08.08.2007-07.08.2010 10,000 - - - - - 10,000
14.10.2008 0.300 31.10.2008-30.10.2011 159,000 - (10,000) - (144,000) - 5,000
(Note)
(Hit)
08.12.2009 0.900 16.12.2009-15.12.2012 - - - 192,000 (9,500) - 182,500
Other eligible participants 25.07.2007 1.130 08.08.2007-07.08.2010 5,000 - - - - - 5,000
EAERSEAL
20.06.2007 0.790 09.07.2007-08.07.2010 - 20,000 - - - - 20,000
(Note)
(Hit)
14.10.2008 0.300 31.10.2008-30.10.2011 40,000 10,000 - - (50,000) - -
(Note)
(Hit)
08.12.2009 0.900 16.12.2009-15.12.2012 - - - 102,000 (8,000) - 94,000
286,000 30,000 (30,000) 294,000 (211,500) (36,000) 332,500
Note: /Iz/j& .

Such share options were re-classified from the category of “Employees”
to “Other eligible participants” during the year as a result of the change
of the title of the relevant participant.
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BB wRME (&)

o the year ended 31 December 2009 BEZZZNF+_A=+—HIFE
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REXLot Holai'ng; Limited WRBHERERAT

The share options were held by an eligible participant who become
an employee of the Group during the year. Such share options were
re-classified from the category of “Other eligible participants” to
"Employees” during the year accordingly.

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 34. BRRESTE (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Scheme: TREEZTE 2EH:
During the year ended 31 December 2008: HE_TZENF+_A=Z+—HILFE:
Number of share options ('000)
BREHA (T4)
Transferred Transferred
from other to other
Date of Exercise Outstanding category category Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
offer to grant price per Exercisable at during during during during during at
Grantees options share period 01.01.2008 the year the year the year the year the year 31.12.2008
RZBBNE RZBBNE
BRE -A-H FhERA ERERE +ZB=t-H
BRA RYEEE BRORE s HATE R ER AftER ERRME ERfik ERER AR
HKS
AT
Employees 06.07.2006 0295 13.07.2006-12.07.2009 36,000 - - - - - 36,000
20.06.2007 0.790  09.07.2007-08.07.2010 56,000 - - - (20,000) - 36,000
25.07.2007 1.130  08.08.2007-07.08.2010 5,000 5,000 - - - - 10,000
(Note)
(H#)
14.10.2008 0.300 31.10.2008-30.10.2011 - - - 159,000 - - 159,000
Other eligible participants 25.07.2007 1.130  08.08.2007-07.08.2010 10,000 - (5,000) - - - 5,000
EHaERSEAL (Note)
(i)
14.10.2008 0.300 31.10.2008-30.10.2011 - - - 40,000 - - 40,000
107,000 5,000 (5,000) 199,000 (20,000) - 286,000
Note: M aE -

ZERRED - ERFARAAEERREZAERSH
ALHEA At ZSBERECRFRH [EBAERS
AL Z2EREFROBRE(EE] -
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

MEBEHRRKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTZENF+-_A=+—HILFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes:

(i) The closing price of the share immediately before the date of grant

on 16 December 2009 was HK$0.790.

(ii) Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their

related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

34.

ERESTE (E)
LS

() EZEEHAH W-_ZZhF+-_A+~HEZ
&1 Y & &0.7908 7T

(i)  MARITEBRESEEZPRAFEMET TR

BT :
2009 2008
—EEBAF —TENEF
Average Average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of

per share share options per share share options

BRFY FRFY
THEE BREHE TiE(E B2 B
HK$ 000 HK$ ‘000
Er F 17 Eor Fir
Outstanding at 1 January R—A—RBHKRITE 0.405 286,000 0.671 107,000
Granted [ 0.900 294,000 0.300 199,000
Exercised B171E 0.350 (211,500)* 0.790 (20,000)
Lapsed B R 0.295 (36,000) - -
Outstanding at 31 December RtZA=+—BRHRITE 0.890 332,500 0.405 286,000

* Out of 211,500,000 share options exercised during the year,
17,500,000 share options were exercised on 29 December
2009 but shares were allotted and issued on 4 January 2010.

The related weighted average share price at the time of exercise

was HK$0.55 (2008 : HK$1.260) per share.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2009 had exercise
price ranging from HK$0.300 to HK$1.130 (2008: ranging
from HK$0.295 to HK$1.13) and a weighted average remaining

contractual life of 2.57 years (2008: 2.31 years).

(iii)  No option was cancelled during the year.
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RITEREREMETRERER0SSET (=22
T)\F 1 1.26087L) °

R-IETNF+-_AZ+—BERTEZERE
ZATEEN F0.300F T 11308 T (ZFTN
FNT0.295BLEN3B L)  MIEFHHBT
AMERBNE257FE (ZEZN\F 2314F) -
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““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZZNF+A=+—HIFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 34. BRERE (8)

During the year, 294,000,000 (2008: 199,000,000) share
options were granted under the share option scheme to
grantees for an aggregate consideration of HK$5 (2008:
HK$13). 36,000,000 share options granted remaining at 31
December 2008 had lapsed on 12 July 2009.

The exercise in full of the outstanding 332,500,000 share
options at 31 December 2009 would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 332,500,000
additional shares for a total cash consideration, before expenses,
of approximately HK$295,740,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, 294,000,000 options
were granted on 16 December 2009 and are fully vested at the
same date. The estimated fair value of the options granted on
this date is approximately HK$7,951,000.

The fair value is calculated by using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The weighted average inputs into the model were

F£ R #£4H294,000,00000 (Z T T )\ 5
199,000,000 ) B8 A% # 1R 1% 55 A% & &t &1 ) &
BABH #REASHET(ZZTEZTNF 13
BT RZTEENF+ZA=+—HBELZ
36,000,000 BEIREHN B RITFEER ZTZ
NELA+ Bk

BEARRZREERER BHITERZ-ZZZ
NE+ZA=+—HB®*KRTT,2332,500,00015
BB A% B 5 8 B 26 77332,500,000 % ZE AN 17 - 42
e RERIBRFE A4 A295,740,0007 7T

HE_ZTZZAhFEF+_A=+—RBILEE"
294,000,000 FERER —TZNF+ A +X
ALY YRABEHREE RNZAHRL 28
A& 2 A EhETA7,951,0008 7T ©

DR BT B 5 — 4 B R B R A 5
Ho gAY METHE BT -

as follows:
Share options granted
RH\RE
Date of Date of Date of
offer to grant offer to grant offer to grant
options options options
08.12.2009 08.12.2009 14.10.2008
BB R i s i s v
R ES £ B i B 8
RZZBBAFE RIZZNF RKRZZTZNF
+=ANH +=ANH +A+mA
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Share price iz (B HK$0.76038 Tt HK$0.760/87C  HK$0.3005% 7T
Exercise price 1fE(E HK$0.900/ T HK$0.900/% L  HK$0.300/%E 7T
Expected volatility T8 A 1 40.16% 43.56% 73.21%
Expected option life (in years) TEERRE AR REEAIR (R 5T) 0.5 0.25 1
Risk-free-rate fm 3 B ) 0.08 0.04 0.59
Expected dividends TEERAR B 1% 1% 0%
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35.

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

MBEHRRKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-TTAG+-A=+—BLFE N

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 34. BRRESTE (&)
The expected volatility was determined by using the historical TEHEEDEAARAARRENBEME 2 KR
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous EE -ZRIMACERFRDVBEERRE 24
two years. The expected life used in the model has been STRLA R EEN  TRRERITAEEZEEM
adjusted, based on the managements’ estimate, for the effects o
of non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considerations.
The Group recognised the total expense of approximately REBEE_TEThAhF+ZA=F+—BLEFE"
HK$7,951,000 for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: ZK%‘%EEV*ZK AIRE e ERERRE LD
HK$2,212,000) in relation to share options granted by the 7,951,000 7L (Z T F )\ 4§ :2,212,000% 7T)
Company, of which approximately HK$5,193,000 (2008: B EP 495,193,000 0 (Z T )\ F:
HK$1,768,000) are recorded in staff costs (note 7). 1,768,000/ 0) Bk BEBAA (HE7) -
RESERVES 35. f#f&
(a) The Group (a) &£H
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements REERFERBAFE 2 FEEREED
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the R BRRPABEAZEAESEHER EP
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 43 of 275
the financial statements.
(b) The Company (b) A2
Retained
Capital  Share-based profits/ Proposed
Share  redemption payment  Contributed (accumulated final
premium reverse reserve surplus losses) dividend Total
DR XA REER/ F ]
RiVEE BERRORE  KEZRE BAB%  (BHER) b33 fit
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FAT FET FAT TAT TAT TAT
At 1 January 2008 RZZEN§-F—-H 1,990,643 - 16,013 199,605 (162,105) - 2,044,156
Total comprehensive loss FREEBREE
for the year - - - - (3,290) - (3,290
Recognition of share option BRENAEHER
benefits at fair value BRERT - - 2212 - - - 2212
Repurchase of shares BERH (2,399) 158 - - (158) - (2,399)
Issue of new shares BTHBRG 372,171 - - - - - 372,771
Transfer on exercise of RiTfeEREmER
share options 4,582 - (4,582) - - - -
At 31 December 2008 and RZZEENFTZA=+-HER
1 January 2009 “ZTNE-F-H 2,365,597 158 13,643 199,605 (165,553) - 2,413,450
Total comprehensive income FRRERGER
for the year - - - - 213,120 - 213,120
Issue of new shares BIHRN 56,260 - - - - - 56,260
Recognition of share option BRARNAETER
benefits at fair value BRERT - - 7,951 - - - 7,951
Share options lapsed BRELN - - (1,679) - 1,679 - -
Transfer on exercise of RiTEBREMER
share options 2,157 - (2,157) - - - -
Interim dividends (note 73) RERS (H13) - - - - (13,633) - (13,633)
Proposed final dividend BEREBE - - - - (33,083) 33,083 -
At 31 December 2009 RZFBAET-A=1-H 2,424,014 158 17,758 199,605 2,530 33,083 2,677,148
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB wRME (&)

““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZZNF+A=+—HIFE

35. RESERVES (continued)
(c) Nature and purposes of the reserves

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 Bermuda.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction
of the nominal value of the issued capital of the
Company upon the cancellation of the repurchased
shares.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of
the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share based payments
in note 2(q)(iii).

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares of the subsidiaries
at the date on which they were acquired by the
Group and the nominal amount of the shares
issued for the acquisition, less dividend and capital
restructuring.

Exchange translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy note 2(c)(i).

REXLot Holdings Limited SRR R RARA T

35. f#fE (&)

RELERER

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

KR 15 EE
B HEERZERE -NWN\—FBR
FERRDEBAOGEARE -

BEXEE#E
EABOFEREHBREOSAR
ARHTEAEmERIMES -

HRGZ N BZ@EE

VAR D 32 SRIR 2 B FE AR 1R MY E
2(q)(iDFA AR D ST FRIAM R A Z &
AREBRBANAEEER A MGEE
EAMARITEERESRE ZAAE.

KB EE
FRlREENB AR RASELREE
B 2 B A TH B 28 Bt U B i B 1T AR £ 2
HEMERZ2ZR IHEBRERER
Bl

ELZ#E

N HEEREBRERINER M5
WRAEEZABELZE HHER
B2 2 SRR IR
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35. RESERVES (continued)

(9

(d)

Nature and purposes of the reserves (continued)

vi) Contribution surplus
The contribution surplus of the Company as at 31
December 2009 represents the difference between
the consolidated net assets of REXCAPITAL Financial
Group Limited at the date when its shares were
acquired by the Company, and the nominal amount
of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition,
less dividends and capital restructuring.

Distributability of reserves

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of the
contributed surplus, if:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(ii)  the realisable value of the Company's assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

MEBEHRRKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTZENF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. f#fE (&)

(9

(d)

REEERBEMW (E)

vi) BAZEE
RARABBE_ZZTALF+ A
=+ —HZHEHABHBIEREXCAPITAL
Financial Group Limitedf% ) # A& 2
AEER ERAEEFEEAR
AP mMBEITRO 2 EERERZ
EZHE O NMBREREAREMR-

REZAHS RS

RIEBE-NN—FARERRE (KIER]) &
RAEZHA BRI IR - AT - e 34
ATER - AIARR B A A B R 30K (5 AR
A RBTIEL DR

() AR R R R R B S R AR
R R A 5

(i ARBEEZAZBRE/BELDINE
BEREEZETRANERMDEERZ
BFtE®-

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’'s reserves EEZRA ARAFREERAIHI IR TR

available for distribution to shareholders as at the balance RoHEHEET
sheet date were as follows:

2009 2008

—ETAEF —TT)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Contributed surplus AN BER 185,972 199,605

Retained profits/(accumulated losses) REBEFN, (REE) 16,163 (165,553)

202,135 34,052
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““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZZNF+A=+—HIFE
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36. TRADE PAYABLES 36. ENESRX

The Group
rEH

2009 2008
—EETAF —ETNF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Margin client payables ERFREPER 4,863 5,341
Other client payables P E A = P BR AR 28,515 15,174
Amounts due to clearing houses FEAS & B FTAR K 71 -
Trade payables — Lottery business EREBHER - FHRED 60,809 133,365
Bills payables — Lottery business BN BIE-FEEE 16,875 -
111,133 153,880

Margin client payables and other client payables are repayable
on demand and bear interest at prevailing market rates.

No ageing analysis is disclosed for margin client payables, other
client payables and amounts due to clearing houses as, in the
opinion of the Directors, the ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of business of securities
margin financing and broking.

Trade payables are expected to be settled within one year or are
repayable on demand.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade
payables approximate to their fair values.

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables — Lottery

business is as follows:

BNAREPEFARENEMELPERIEE
SREFERN  WARITHIH RS -

HREERALNESATRBEEE RELER
HEME REIMEZ TR AU EREE
NHAREFPER ENHEMEPEARENEE
FRER 2 BREC DT E H o

ENESERERAN —FAIN RN ERKEE

fit o

EERRENESRIZEEERE QL EMR

.

T

o

AEBENESEFR-—FREBZ KRR DT
T

The Group
rEH

2009 2008
—ZEEThEF —ZTENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Three months or less —EAUAT 52,023 130,690
One year or less but over three months —FHUATE=EAMNUE 8,786 2,675
60,809 133,365
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

MBEHRRKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTThF+_A=+—HIFE

37. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
Other payables and accruals of the Group and the Company are
expected to be settled or recognised as income within one year
or are repayable on demand.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of other
payables and accruals of the Group and the Company
approximate to their fair values.

37.

H At P& Y FRR K FE SRR

REBERART 2 E RN RIEREFRAR
HR—FAREEARBRBARREREFEE -

EXZRAAEERARREZ H A AN RIE R

SARBEZEEEERAARERE-

38. BORROWINGS 38. BE
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEhEF —EENF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Bank overdrafts RITEX
- secured —HEA - 1,026
— unsecured —EE R 67 -
Bank loans |ITER
— secured —HHER 56,818 13,132
— unsecured —fEIEA 4,772 -
Other loan HMER
Wholly repayable within five years RAFRBEHER
— unsecured —E R 18,533 -
80,190 14,158
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M E®mxME (&)

““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZZNF+A=+—HIFE

38. BORROWINGS (continued) 38.

These borrowings are used to finance the lottery business of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2008, the bank overdrafts were secured by
client’s securities amounting to HK$2,856,000.

Bank loans of approximately HK$56,818,000 (2008:
HK$13,132,000) were secured by the leasehold buildings and
land use right of the Group (note 17).

The effective interest rates on the Group’s borrowings are equal
to contractual interest rates.

Other loan wholly repayable within five years is repayable on or
before 19 July 2010 which has been repaid subsequently after
year end. Interest is charged on the outstanding balance at
prime rate plus 2% per annum (note 47(a)).

The Directors consider that the fair values of borrowings at the
balance sheet date approximate to their carrying amounts.

The maturity of borrowings is as follows:

REXLot Holdings Limited WRBHERERAT

BE& (&)
ZERETDBERNASRE 2V EER -

RIEZ)N\F+-A=+—H RBABIUERF
& 2,856,000 ;T /EHE #H o

#756,818,000/8 7T ( —FZFJ\F :13,132,000/8
TIZBRTEFUASBE ZHERF R LMER
VR (MsE17) ©

AEEEEZERMETFBERAHIE-

REERNEREEZHHERAR-_T—F
tATNABHZAEE EHERCRFLAE
B AEERBERSERMNRMFENR2%:TE
(KtsEa7(a)) »

o T

iy

BEERR BENEEAZAAERAREER
S

FHEENT

2009 2008

—EENF —ETNF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 80,190 2,351
Between one and two years —EMWF - 1,325
Between two and five years MERF - 3,975
Wholly repayable within five years RAEFANBHEER 80,190 7,651
Over five years A AT - 6,507
80,190 14,158

The bank overdrafts carried interest at either HIBOR or Prime
Rate (2008: HIBOR or Prime Rate). The effective interest rates for
bank loans are ranging from 4.86% to 5.84% per annum (2008:
5.94% to 7.83%).

Bank borrowings include the following amount denominated in
a currency other than the Company’s functional currency, HK

BITELNREBRERBA R HERFE
(Z2ZNF  BBREFRBFERZEEFE)
AE-BITERZERFMNEREN T486%=
5.84%F B (ZZEZTNF :594%%7.83% ) °

RITEEBETINAKRR R L E I TTIAS
B HIE 2 FE

dollars:
2009 2008
—EENF e AN:S
‘000 ‘000
FT For
Renminbi AR 54,200 11,556
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39.

40.

41.

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTZENF+-_A=+—HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC subsidiaries
are required to make contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes organised by the relevant Social Security
Bureau in respect of the retirement benefits for the PRC
subsidiaries” employees in the PRC.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ISSUED

The Group

At 31 December 2009, the Group has not given any significant
financial guarantees (2008: Nil).

The Company

The Company has issued unlimited corporate guarantee to
a bank to secure general facilities granted to one of the
subsidiaries. None (2008: Nil) of the facilities were utilised by
the subsidiary as at 31 December 2009. The Company has not
recognised any deferred income and the related expenses in
respect of such guarantee, as in the opinion of the directors,
their fair value cannot be reliably measured using observable
market data and their transaction price was nil.

The directors consider that the subsidiary is financially
resourceful in settling the obligation.

COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2009
not provided for in the financial statements were as

39.

40.

41.

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
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BAKEREE
AEBRBBRIMEIBESHEGI REERE
ERZEBHERESRABME ([BES
AEDZEE R BEEBRHRZRESE
o FFHZHATIRREEAH S Z B LA
B WRRSERTR S 5T & 2 R E R B HREE R
mAPHG - AREpIRES L ZEE
HR2HEBEEEMA -

BREFRTEER TREMBARARTEES
ZERARENMERETERERBE 2 ERER
ROREHEIER HR -

SR HBRR

TEE

R-ZBZENF+-A=+—H AKELHEEKX
HBER(ZZETNF E) -

ENVN

ARREHER —RMBERRAME—REER
—RBTELHBERBZARER - R_TTNF
TZA=t+—B WEBARLTEPHREER (=
TENE R -BERR RDELUMBER
ZARERENAABRMSHIEAISESE
EIWEA B - AR R L SRR AERAE
EIEW A R B B -

E=ZRRZMBARARERWES FBEAH
B e
A
(a) RZZEZTAG+ZA=+—BIUERFAH

BHERZRENEREENT

follows:
The Group KEE
2009 2008
—EENE ZTETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contracted for REES)
— purchase of leasehold land use rights —-BERE T ERE (W)
(Note) 22,358 22,358
— purchase of property, —BEME WERRK
plant and equipment 38,804 -
61,162 22,358
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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41. COMMITMENTS (continued)

Note:

On 24 July 2008, the Group entered into an agreement to
acquire a medium term leasehold land use rights in the PRC for
a consideration of RMB21,775,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$24,744,000), of which RMB2,100,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,386,000) was paid to the relevant government
authority at the balance sheet date and had been recognised
as "Deposit for acquisition of leasehold land use rights” in the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2009 and 2008,
resulting in a capital commitment of RMB19,675,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$22,358,000). The relevant land use right
certificate is expected to be issued upon fully settlement of the
consideration, which is expected at the end of May 2010.

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

RﬂbﬂkHﬁ@ﬁﬁ%dﬁ%¢%Eﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ

41. AIE(B)

Brat -

RZZENFLtAZ+HEB AEETL—H1H
HEUANECETPREE L ERE REAAR
#21,775,0007T (#)#855 7224,744,000% 70) - &
AR #2,100,0007T (47 #8%742,386,0007% 7t )
REEAEINTFEBBAME WER=ZZ
NER-—TBENE+-_A=+—HZzHAKESR
BERABRABARE L WEREZTS] 1
M3l B & A& 4E AR %19,675,0007T (X915 7
22,358,000 T ) - TBEAR B R EBERFISEEE
T E AR ERACT—TERAK-

RZZBZAF+T-_A=+—RB AEER
BRAREEEHOZARENKRELS
BRI

The Group AEME
2009 2008
—BEAE EE LI
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET

Land and buildings T R EF

Within one year —F R 17,132 13,841
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZERF(BEEEMTF) 13,716 20,089
30,848 33,930

The Group leases various office premises and warehouses
under operating leases. The leases run for an initial period
of one to three years. The leases do not include any

contingent rentals.

The Company

At 31 December 2009, the Company did not have any
significant capital and operating lease commitments (2008:
Nil).

AEERBELHENERZEARLERRE
B-mzERONLAR -2 =F1%
TREEMHIAES-

S

NN

RZZEZANF+ZA=1+—8B AR2AL
BAMNEABEARKEHNAE (ZZZ
NEF &) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

MBEHRRKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTThF+_A=+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

42. BEREs2E¢MIA
REEH SEeMIAZERABENT:

The Group AEE
Financial assets SREE
2009 2008
“EEZhE ZZZNE
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
fair value fair value
through through
profit or profit or
loss - held Loans and loss - held Loans and
for trading  receivables Total  fortrading  receivables Total
RASEE BANEHE
LEREE- ¥R LEREE- BERR
BEIFEE A @i  BAEEE EIHIE b
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Wi FET FET FEn FET FET FET
Statutory deposits ETRE 24 - 632 632 - 632 632
Trade receivables EUESER 28 - 679,029 679,029 - 708,905 708,905
Utility and other deposits NREEREMES - 233,278 233,278 - 127,567 127,567
Other receivables Hih e 30 = 324,242 324,242 - 229,874 229,874
Financial assets at fair value BBBRRLLEHEL
through profit or loss SREE 31 23,064 - 23,064 9,311 - 9,311
Cash and bank balances ReRBIEH B = 353,158 353,158 - 244,043 244,043
23,064 1,590,339 1,613,403 9,311 1,311,021 1,320,332
Financial liabilities cRasE
2009 2008
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
—EENF —TTN\F
R bivg: Eic
RAGH & KAGHE
ZERAE ZemAaRE
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
k=3 FET FET
Borrowings BE 38 80,190 14,158
Trade payables B 5 RN 36 111,133 153,880
Other payables and accruals H M ST RIE R FEET RIB 37 77,095 55,019
268,418 223,057
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BB RME (&)

o the year ended 31 December 2009 BEZZZNF+_A=+—HIFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the
normal course of its business and financial instruments.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focus
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance as follows:

(i)  Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to
adverse movements in foreign exchange rate
relating to receivables from foreign brokers
and foreign currency deposits with banks. The
Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from the above
receivables in the current and prior years.

In addition, foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operation. The Group's lottery
business operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions settled in RMB. The conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

During the year ended 31 December 2009,
if HK$ had strengthened/weakened by 5%
against the RMB, with all other variables
held constant, the effect on the profit for
the year is immaterial, equity would have
been approximately HK$60,545,000 (2008:
HK$35,118,000) lower/higher due to foreign
exchange realignment arising from translating
investments in foreign operations into HKS$.

The above sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that a change in foreign
exchange rate had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to foreign exchange risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 5%
increase or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
exchange rate over the period until the next
balance sheet date. The analysis was performed
on the same basis for 2008.

Rﬂbﬂkﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ%dﬁ%¢%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ

43. MIEEKER

(a) MBEREEZE
AEBEZEBE-REBBETRASR
TAMPRkZAMBRR : mERE (B2
SMNERER - RAREMEER BREREMNE
RRRkERRR) EERRERBHE SR
o AEE T ERERAREEFE  FEN
TR S Z AR FRRIE R - = SORE B
AEEMBRBEZBETNZE:

(i) TEmEE
(1) SMNERERZ
SINEE [ 45 A B SN B AR A R W B
FIARIF R IRIT 2 INEIF R 2
P R AN R B i 2 A 2 5 1R 2 JEL
B AKRERAFELBEFE
WEAYER DR EWRREEZ
BEARIMER R

SO RREER S  CHER?
EREE URFIEHREF
BEHGELIINERAR AEEZ
FEEBIZEPEERLE
ABHRGAANRESEH <1
ARBBME BINEAZ P BB
Ff 0840 2 51 BE & 1 AR I B AR B &5

s
= o

HE-TTNF+-A=+—8H
IEFE - WATEARBESH
18,/ RIES %M AT A 8 &
BTE AFEERNYESTE
R -mEEEREREIINER 2
BEBBITMEEZINEFE
#5848 A0 4960,545,0007%
L (ZFZT/)\F 35,118,000
JT) e

A ESBURE ST R R E RN AEE
A REANEZAFENS
BT EMSIEOINERR-5%
BB BERENEEER
T EEERMEARAENA A
R IRE R B - AHREEN D
ME_ZEZNFEREET
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(i)  Market risk (continued)

2)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

The Group monitors its interest rate exposure
regularly to ensure that the underlying risk is
monitored within an acceptable range. Most of
the Group's interest bearing assets and liabilities
are on a floating rate basis with maturity of one
year or less.

The Group's interest rate positions arise from
treasury and operating activities. Interest rate
risk arises in treasury management, customer
financing and investment portfolios. Interest
rate risk primarily results from the timing
differences in the repricing of interest-bearing
assets, liabilities and commitments. It also
relates to the bank borrowings carried interest
at variable rates which are collateralised
by margin client’s securities and leasehold
buildings and land use rights to mitigate the
cash flow interest risk.

At 31 December 2009, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 1% in interest
rates of the PRC and of Hong Kong (2008:
0.1% and 1% respectively), with all other
variables held constant, would increase/decrease
profit for the year and increase/decrease
retained profits by approximately HK$2,288,000
(2008: HK$3,415,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for both derivative and non-
derivative financial instruments in existence at
that date. The 1% increase or decrease in the
PRC and Hong Kong interest rate represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual balance sheet date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-TTAG+-A=+—BLFE

BERBER (&)
(a) MBEBREE (&)
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BB HRME (&)

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

()

(ii)

Market risk (continued)

(3)  Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through investments in equity securities and
the Company’s interests in subsidiaries. The
Group is not exposed to commodity price risk.
The Board of Directors manages the exposure
by closely monitoring the portfolio of equity
investments. To manage its price risk arising
from investments in equity securities, the Group
diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the
portfolio is done in accordance with the limits
set by the Group. The Group did not have
significant exposure to price risk during the
current and prior years.

The Company is exposed to other price risk in
respect of its investments in subsidiaries. The
sensitivity to other price risk in relation to the
investments in subsidiaries cannot be reliably
determined due to numerous uncertainties
regarding the future development of these
subsidiaries.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the clients’ and brokers’ failure to perform
their obligations as at 31 December 2009 in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible to compile the credit
and risk management policies, to approve credit limits
and determine any debt recovery action on those
delinquent receivables. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount for each individual account
receivable at each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate allowances for impairment are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

REXLot Holdi'ng; Limited WRBHERERAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKZE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-TTAGF+-A=+—BLFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(ii)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is also limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. In
this regard, the Directors of the Group consider that
the Group's credit risk is effectively controlled and
significantly reduced.

At the balance sheet date, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as approximately 30%
(2008: 34%) of the total trade and other receivables
were due from the five largest clients.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the
Group's exposures to credit risk arising from
trade receivables, utility and other deposits, and
prepayments and other receivables are set out in
notes 28, 29 and 30.

(iii) Liquidity risk

As part of ordinary broking activities, the Group is
exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing difference
between settlement with Clearing House or brokers
and clients. To address the risk, management is
responsible for its own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the management when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
regulatory requirements, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meets
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual

maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's

non-derivatives financial liabilities, which are based

on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including

interest payments computed using contractual rates

or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance

sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be

required to pay:

““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZZNF+A=+—HIFE

43. MBEARERE (&)

(a)

BBEBEE (E)

(iii) HEBELELE (&
TRINRAEERGEE
REHBRENETEeREBE (RE
BRANF RS (MBFE)RELE
ANERFMEFENFE)NBRTE
HERER URAEEAEERS
FIEHREBHES:

REXLot Holdings Limited SRR R RARAT

RGBT

2009
It 2 Jik:3

More More

Total Within than than
contractual 1 year 1 year but 2 years but More
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than less than than
amount cash flows demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

Bu4

kS 2 —FRF -E)E BAMEF
BHE RERBAE REREE BEMFR BELER BBILE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FEx FEx 7Ex FEx FEx FEx
Trade payables ERESEHR 111,133 111,133 111,133 - - -
Other payables and accruals  E AR B 508 R fEat 508 71,095 71,095 71,095 - - -
Borrowings BE 80,190 81,268 81,268 - - -
268,418 269,496 269,496 = = =

2008
“ETNE

More More

Total Within than than
contractual 1 year 1 year but 2 years but More
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than less than than
amount cash flows demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

BUH

AR —FR% —FE belika
REE RERELER REXRE BEMEFR BERFR BBRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
Trade payables [ ECES 153,880 153,880 153,880 - -
Other payables and accruals H o BB R JE5tFUE 55,019 55,019 55,019 - -
Borrowings BE 14,158 16,402 2,139 2,139 6,418 5,706
223,057 225,301 211,038 2,139 6,418 5,706
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE_ZTZAF+-_A=+—HILFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Fair values

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of the
financial instruments measured at fair value at the balance
sheet date across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy
defined in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
with the fair value of each financial instruments
categorised in its entirely based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value measurement. The
levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial

instruments.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active
market for similar financial instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable data.

Level 3 (lowest level): fair value measured using valuation
techniques in which any significant input is not on based
observable market data.

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKZE (CFE)

43. MBEARERE (&)

(b)

ARE

BAREIEZE@MT A
TEREINREER REBHERE LR
FIRIEBRIAE HBEIFMAT=-EQAAR
BERHE RAABEFEZEMIAZE
EE SEFEIENSRIAZAARESR
BERBGAEREERTE BEEHAE
HRAABFEHEEE - AHRSANTE
W

—R (HEZH)  FIRIEE BT
SMIAZRECREIR)HEAR

Eﬂ?ﬂﬁ“ﬂ*

E_H-NBEERTSTEOSRIA
ZHRE FIMEEERAMEERATBED
BEERSHzZEERAB A ERM &

HRARE

F=R(HEFH)  MAEALIFERT]
BEMSBBRSHZE2HABEZEER

MEtE AR E-

Level 1
-8R
HK$000
FET
2009 —EENF
Financial assets at fair value BREREAABHIEZRMERE:
through profit or loss:
— Listed equity investment — LR AEEE 23,064
2008 —BBN\E
Financial assets at fair value BRBREANBENECEREAE:
through profit or loss:
— Listed equity investment — LR ARIRE 9,311
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o the year ended 31 December 2009 BEZZZNF+_A=+—HIFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) BERMER (&)

(c) Estimation of fair values
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities) is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price (i.e. level 1 — highest
level).

The carrying values less allowances for impairment
of current receivables and of current payables are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values. Estimated
discounted cash flows at the current market interest
rate are used to determine fair value for other financial

instruments (i.e. level 3 — lowest level).

44. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this
purpose the Group defines debts as total debts (which includes
borrowings, trade and other payables plus unaccrued proposed
dividends). Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity,
other than amounts recognised in equity relating to cash flow
hedges, less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2009, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2008, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at a
reasonable level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-_TTNF+_A=+—HIEFE =

44. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2009 and

45.

44, i%ﬂxﬂﬁ"é‘ﬂ(ﬁ)
RZBEZNFR-_FEZEN\F+_A=+—Hz8&

2008 were as follows: BHELHAEERLEQNT :
2009 2008
—EEhEF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current liabilities: BB E -
Trade payables ERTE S R® 111,133 153,880
Other payables and accruals H A FE A 5B R R RIR 77,095 55,019
Borrowings EE 80,190 2,351
268,418 211,250
Non-current liabilities: BB E -
Borrowings BE - 11,807
Total debts BfEMEE 268,418 223,057
Adjusted capital KABER 3,413,588 3,060,555
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio EEHEKHEERAL R FE 8% 7%
Certain subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital ATHEBRRARBEEES RABKRN ([FFH
requirements in accordance with the Hong Kong Securities and RERGARD] ) EFINBERZ EXRBE MR
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") and their respective liquid capital ZENF+_A=+—HBREZERDERTIE
as at 31 December 2009 is in compliance with the stipulated TRAMPEGRIREZ REBERER-

liquidity requirement imposed by the SFO.

The Company are not subject to either internally or externally
imposed capital requirements.

ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

In April 2008, the Group acquired additional 26% equity interest
of Shenzhen Kingsail Software Tech Co Ltd (“Kingsail”), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, from its minority
shareholders at a consideration of HK$75,000,000 by way
of cash. As a result of the additional acquisition, Kingsail has
become an 84% owned subsidiary of the Group.

In June 2008, the Group acquired additional 20% equity
interest of Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd (“Sinodata”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, from its minority
shareholders at a consideration of HK$600,000,000 which
was satisfied as to HK$240,000,000 by way of cash and
HK$360,000,000 by issuing 254,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at the issue price of approximately HK$1.4173 per
share. As a result of the additional acquisition, Sinodata has
become an 84.75% owned subsidiary of the Group.

Annual Report 2009 =ZEAFFH

45.

RARHA ARG HAETEMERELK

RKE DR 2 EIMER
RZZZENFMOA - LKE@F‘WE’J B S IR
WHE A S EIE2 A M E 2 RRYIT 2 W

MAERDA(T2MW]) %ﬁé’l\ZG%Hﬁ@é RESD
75,000,000/ 7T » AIR & T7 A S o R RSN
B MR RrEEER4%EE 2 EAF

RZZEENFXA LKE@FWE’J B S IR
WHEASE 2 F2 A M E R RRYIT R L85

KEitERA T(M%J)Zaﬁé?l\ 0% % 1 + (X (&
#£600,000,0007% 7T + & #240,000,0007% 7T A
184 % 1+ 360,000,000 JT LA 32 21T (B 40 F %
1.41737% 7T 3£ 17254,000,000% 7 A &) & 38 A% 77
A e EEEAIH:%E’J\\Hﬂﬁ BEKAAEEAREE
84.75% Wz 2 I B A
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45. ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
In October 2009, the Group acquired additional 16% equity
interest of Shenzhen Kingsail Software Tech Co Ltd (“Kingsail”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, from its minority
shareholders at a consideration of HK$91,000,000 by way
of cash. As a result of the additional acquisition, Kingsail has
become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

46. ACQUISITIONS OF LOTTERY BUSINESSES
(a) Acquisitions in 2009
(i)  Acquisition of I REEZHRKER A&

("REEH")

In April 2009, the Group entered into PRC
mobile lottery business for a total investment of
HK$120,000,000 through acquiring 100% registered
capital in £# Z JF. The subsidiaries of B F
are engaged in the development of mobile value-
added services for lottery business in the PRC. The
transaction has been completed in August 2009.
The vendor issued a guarantee to the wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company whereby the total profit
after tax of the subsidiaries of 2% & #B will not be
less than RMB20,000,000 for the year commencing
on 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 (the “Guaranteed
Profit”). If the Guaranteed Profit is not met, the
vendor will transfer to the Group its equity interest
equivalent to the shortfall of the aggregate of the
actual profit after tax and the Guaranteed Profit as
compensation.

(i) Acquisition of ERBEBZHEEEERMGBERA T

("BR")

On 28 October 2009, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company invested RMB91,000,000 in lottery
ELP by acquiring 80% registered capital in 3. &
R is engaged in the ELP and marketing business of
lottery in PRC including high frequency games. The
transaction has been completed in December 2009.

The above acquired business contributed turnover of
approximately HK$31,440,000 and profit for the year
ended 31 December 2009 of HK$14,683,000 to the
Group. If the above acquired businesses had occurred on
1 January 2009, the Group's turnover would have been
approximately HK$1,284,214,000 and profit for the year
ended 31 December 2009 would have been approximately
HK$413,484,000.
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45. RMBRATI 2B ER (&)
RZZEZTHh&ET A $‘i@ﬁﬁd O &= IR R
WEAEBEEZEMBRAEIIT S W4
MARAR ([ )aﬁ?lwe%ﬂﬂ% "REAB
91,000,000 7T + A& 77 2T o R ILEEINK
B aNMKAREERZ2EWNB AR

46. MBLEXEK
(a) —ZZThFETZWE
(i) WEBIREBEEHNREERLIE ([Z
ﬁ;ﬁﬂ)

RZZZAFMA  AEEBEBIKE
EmEEIPI100%EMEAR LLRKE
120,000,000/ 0 EFEIFHE =
X -BEER2MBE RN B
$%Eam%%2¥%%@m%°§
SERZZTZNFENATK -BAHR
KRAEIZEHBRBEDER RE
RZETAFNA—BRERE-FT—
TFEZA=Z+—HILFE BEZH
Z MR R AR & T AEE A
L AR %20,000,0005T (R & %
F) R ERRERRN B H B
MAEBEEEE TRE HERER
BB E R A BREERB RN 2 Z8
ERE-

(i) WEBERBRAHZEERBTERL T
([HEZE])
RZZBZAF+A=-_+/\H KAAAF
ZE2EMBARBBIIEERS0%E
Hﬂﬁ?«!ﬂﬁé)\ﬁ’ﬂ%m 000,0007C % &

FTREFAR - BRRTEREET
%ﬁ%‘%(@%mﬁi&%ﬁ)&ﬁ?ﬂﬂ’]%ﬁ%‘%
MBEK - XFERZTThE+=
EC A

FREREERAAEBRTERZEXEER
BA#) 531,440,000 TARBE =TT h
F+ - A=+— B LFE % F14,683,000
BT -MEMBEEE —FER=ZZZAN
F-—A—BB®4E AAEEEEERNA
1,284,214,000/ 7w MEBE—TTNF+=
A=+T—HBILFEHF A4 /413,484,000
opIvE
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46. ACQUISITIONS OF LOTTERY BUSINESSES (continued)
(b) Acquisitions in 2008
(i) Acquisition of BEM T #EHBHEERL &
("EMEER")
On 13 April 2008, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a share transfer agreement
with BM TR BESRMERAF and RIITHER
¢t E =B AR AF to acquire 44.496% and 45.504%
respectively of the registered capital in &M 44155 at
an aggregate consideration of RMB80,600,000. The
transaction has been completed in May 2008. & /i £
53w is engaged in the development and production
of sports lottery machines, related operation software
and networks (including the provision of incidental
consultancy services) for the sports lottery industry in
the PRC.

(ii) Beijing Lohowin Marketing Co Ltd (“Beijing

Lohowin”)

In July 2008, the Group initiated a new lottery
business — distribution & marketing business by
investing RMB30,000,000 to acquire 60% interest of
registered capital of Beijing Lohowin. The principal
activities of Beijing Lohowin is distribution and
marketing of lottery products in the PRC.

(iii) Beijing Xinan Sino-lottery Technology Co Ltd

(“Beijing Xinan”)

In November 2008, the Group set up a lottery
printing operation as a cooperative venture with
Shijiazhuang Offset Printing House, one of the three
entities authorised printing house for the Welfare
Scratch Cards in China, through Beijing Xinan.
Investment made up to the end of the financial year
2008 was HK$120,000,000. The Group is in the
process of upgrading by bringing in advance printing
press and increasing the capacity of the plant.

The above acquired businesses contributed turnover of
approximately HK$236,811,000 and loss for the year
ended 31 December 2008 of HK$22,810,000 to the
Group. If the above acquired businesses had occurred on
1 January 2008, the Group’s turnover would have been
approximately HK$1,180,812,000, and profit for the year
ended 31 December 2008 would have been approximately
HK$273,643,000.
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(b) —BBENFEFZKE
() WEEMTREFRBEERAT ([E
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Wg (BIEREAEBARS) -

(i) AREFBEFBEHAERAT ([1F
S5 ])
RZZTENFLA FEBEBIEEA
R #30,000,0007T 4 B8 4t R &M 55, 2
AMERZ60% BB ZER
— PR TS ER - AL RENBR P H
WERZERMXENISER-

(iii) ARELXFERBEERAT ([
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RZZZENF+—A AEEEBI
REZEARETRBIOR (A=RE
RARFBREDRBIEREEHAZHNRR
—)EE UREXEDNREL -BE
ZET\FHRFER BELZERE
/120,000,000 7T ° 7~ 5 B IE i 38 5|
H#E 5T 3 BRI A HR T ED B 52 8 I 4 Ina%
2 EERE °

FREREERARAEBRTRZEXER
Bt#5236,811,0008 LA REEZE=ZTZEN
F+ZA=1+—HIEF/EE1822,810,000
BT oM EMBBEE —SERZZZN

F-A—BELE AAEEEEEROA
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HEZZZNF+-_A=+—HILFE

46. ACQUISITIONS OF LOTTERY BUSINESSES (continued)

(9

Details of the assets and liabilities acquired are as follows:

46.

REXLot Holdings Limited ﬁfq:‘%ﬁﬂﬁﬁpﬂﬂa

BEREREREE (FE)

() WENEEMBEFBEOT:

Acquirees’ fair value

WhEBENAE
2009 2008
—ZEEhEF ZETNF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
M &t FET FETT
Assets/(liabilities) acquired WIEEE(Aaf)
Property, plant and equipment M BB KRS 16 2,928 958
Intangible assets mEEE 20 59 3,283
Inventories FE 29 3,599
Trade receivables FEUE SRR 12,732 3,247
Other receivables H fth & W R IE 3,391 17,002
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITES 14,778 2,357
Trade payables FERE SRR (1,166) (9,170)
Other payables and accruals H b B B K BRI (11,217) (9,331)
Borrowings E (2,273) -
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEEE 25 (2,659) -
Total fair value of AR EEFECEAARE
identifiable net assets 16,602 11,945
Non-controlling interests FEFERR (8,437) (488)
Goodwill ma 19 215,244 237,948
Total consideration REBEeXNz@ERE
settled in cash 223,409 249,405
Net cash outflow in respect of WHEEBE2RER
the acquisitions is analysed FREAWWT
as follows:
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITEH 14,778 2,357
Cash paid BEfRE (223,409) (249,405)
(208,631) (247,048)

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$744,000

have been included in administrative expenses in the

consolidated income statement for the acquisitions

made in the year ended 31 December 2009, whereas the

acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$3,723,000

have been included in the consideration for the

acquisitions made in the year ended 31 December 2008.

FRBE_TTNFT _A=1+—HALEE
HE 7T 2 Y B 1 U B AR BB B K #9744,00078

TER

WEKRANFIBITHRER MER

HE_ZZN\F+_A=+—HILEFERE
17 2 Wi 0 W B 4 B A AN 493,723,000 7T
A ARER-
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47. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED
PARTIES

48.

(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-_TTNF+_A=+—HIEFE =

47. BEAIRZ R G

Details of the Group's significant transactions with the (a) AEBRAEZLETEEALETEKR
following related parties during the year are as follows: R METIAT :
2009 2008
—ETAF —EENEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FrET
Associates of Directors: EEoBMBEAL:
Commission and interest income arising B & E MFEHFMESES LT BUHA
from futures and securities trading - 20
Director: =
Balance due from the Group FEUUA & B 8RR 141 -
Related companies: EZEE/NGTE
Sub-letting income AN 1,221 -
Balance due from the Group JE AN £R AR R 18,533 -
In the opinion of the Directors, including the Independent EXZ (PRBUENTESR)RA LIRS

Non-executive Directors, the above transactions were
entered into in the Group’s ordinary course of business
and at terms agreed by both parties. The balance due
to a director is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed

repayment term.

The balance due to a related company is unsecured,
bearing interest at the prime rate plus 2% and repayable
on or before 19 July 2010 (note 38).

During both years, compensation of key management
personnel represents directors’ remuneration, as stated
in note 10. The directors’ remuneration is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance, responsibilities and experience of individuals

and market trends.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007),

“Presentation of financial statements”,

certain comparative

figures have been adjusted to conform to current year's

presentation and to provide comparative amounts in respect of

items disclosed for the first time in 2009. Further details of these

developments are disclosed in note 3.
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2%t B R AR =
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SRR B R EERE
Z-ZTFEL AT AR

REMFRN TEEBASMERMTI0M
JlzEEME -EEMEehFHEZESLR
EARE BERCBRARTIZBLET -
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HRERBEESHLEUE IR (ZEZLFLEE

) [MBmRZ25] Bt &

THEHETE

FRBURERFE 22T ULRH -FZ
NFERFBERERHLKESE - FAEHEIR
PEEE3 ©

141



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BB RME (&)

Rﬂmnmwmﬁummdm§$%ﬁﬁEMQﬂ

““For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZNF+A=+—HIFE

48. COMPARATIVE FIGURES (continued)

As a result of the application of HKFRS 8, the Group has
redesignated the business segments to reflect the Group’s chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of assessing segment
performance and making decisions about operating matters. In
current year, the money lending segment has merged with the #5)-
financial services segment. As a result of change in the business
segments, certain comparative figures have been reclassified to

48. kBB F (&)
E%E%ﬁ%%%ﬁiﬁW%wﬁ$§@E§
MAEEBOM UHEAKREETELERR
oA RA R EBEBREEFHRE $¢F'§
RO ERERRBE D A - HNEB DA

ETUBETFEEENH R UFAaAEF

BZ2NHR -RBOMZEHHAKREAFR

LBEFREZEZANRBBIRNL BEZE

conform to the current year's presentation. The changes of the

business segments have no effect on the Group’s results and

financial position for current and prior years.
In addition, the Group has reclassified
deposits and other receivables”
consolidated balance sheet into
and “prepayments and other receivables”.

the Directors, it is just for better understanding of financial
position of the Group. Certain comparative figures have been
reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation. The

“prepayments,
shown in prior year'’s
“utility and other deposits”
In the opinion of

N AEER EFEFAEERBRAMK
ZIBENR BEREAMRKREBIEFDES
[AREERAEMZS | R [FEMN R HE i ER
RE| - EZRRBBER/RTBETHRAEEZ
BHERR-ETHRBRFECENDE UFE
REBEZ2YNFX - EMHDBHAERLAFER
BEFRE 2 FERM IO & E

reclassification has no effect on the Group's results and financial

position for the current and prior years.

49. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2009 and which have not been adopted in

these financial statements.

49, EEAERBE-ZEENFE+=-A=+—H
IEFEMRERZIER] HERRZBEARE
-3l

BEEAMBRETEAE BESHAAEE
MUATREZEZTETARF+=_A=+—H JJ:E'E
[E 18 7R A R R 7 B 7 SR 2R N R AN 2 (B ET
FTAERI R e fE o

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning

on or after

RTHAH

B2EMRZ

BB EXR

HKFRS 1 (Revised), First-time adoption of AT B REERE1H (LIEFT) 1 July 2009
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards BHIRERMNE BSR4 “ETNFLA—H
Amendments to HKAS 39, Financial Instruments: SAE G EREIR 2B 2RI 1 July 2009
Recognition and Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items BARARE — GEREUAIER —EENFLA—H
HK(IFRIC) 17, Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners B4 (BRVBRERBE E@) 1 July 2009
- REFVR MBEBASRERGEE ZETNFLA—H

Improvements to HKFRSs 2008 HITTN\GEBUBHREER 2 S8 1 July 2009
“EThFLA—H
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE_ZTZEAF+-_A=+—HILFE

49. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKE (CFE)

49. EEAEREBE-_SETNEFE+=-A=+—H
IHEEEMRERZIET FHENRZRETE

YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER BB (B
2009 (continued)
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning
on or after
RT3 A58
B2EMRBRZ
BB EXR
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 H-_TTNEEBUBREER 2 S 1 July 2009 or
1 January 2010
ZZTNFEA-HH
—E-TF-A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based Payment BBV BREENE2HR ZER UEHD A 1 January 2010
- Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions Bl sNHR — SENRSHEE ARG —T-T5—-H—H
RERINRRS
Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time adoption of BEREUBREEANE 1R 2B BRRNEE 1 January 2010
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards MBREER — BREME 2R I
- Additional exemptions for first-time adopters
Amendment to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: EFeHERENF 2B eI A: 1 February 2010
Presentation — Classification of rights issues 25 - #RH 8\ —T-TH-H—H
HK(IFRIC) 19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with BE (BRVBREREZES 1 July 2010
Equity Instruments - REE1R URATIAHHFHSRERE “E-TFLA—-H
Amendment to HKFRS 1, First-time adoption of BEREUBREERE IR 2B ERRNES 1 July 2010
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards — MHmELD — EAEMNEERB AT BRE —ZFtA—H
Limited exemption from comparative HKFRS 7 EAFETRLBREZEEN 2 BRAE
disclosures for first-time adopters
HKAS 24 (Revised), Related Party Disclosures BREGHERNE245 (K1E5]) BEATHE 1 January 2011
—E——%—-A—H
Amendments to HK(IFRIC) 14, HKAS 19 The Limit BE (BRI BREREZES) 1 January 2011
on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding — RREF14F 2B BB LR —T——%—H—H

Requirements and their Interaction — Prepayments
of a Minimum Funding Requirement
HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

FIORRAERNEERY REEEER
LmEZEERE - REESERAMNK

EEMBRELNET 2RITA

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of

what the impact of these amendments, new standards and

new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial

application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them

is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's results of

operations and financial position.
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50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2009 are as follows:

Rﬂmnmwmﬁummdm§$%ﬁﬁEMQﬂ

50. XEMBARZHE

ARRRZEZNEFT A=+ —HZETEWE

RAFBWT:

Place of Principal Particulars of issued Effective
incorporation/ activities and share capital/ interest
Name registration place of operation registered capital held
BRITRES
=L SE AR AL R i B TEEBREEBY HMEARFE s ER gL
REXCAPITAL Financial British Virgin Islands Investment holding 197,400,856 Ordinary 100%
Group Limited RBREZHS in Hong Kong shares of HK$1 each
REBETRERR 197,400,856/ *
BREB BT EBKR
REXCAPITAL Financial Hong Kong Investment holding 25,000,000 Ordinary 100%
Investment Limited B8 in Hong Kong shares of HK$1 each
HRERBRERARAA REBETRERER 25,000,0004% -
BREEIET SRR
REXCAPITAL Asset Hong Kong Investment holding, 5,000,000 Ordinary 100%
Management Limited BB provision of advisory shares of HK$1 each
HREEEEARAA and fund management  5,000,0004%
services in Hong Kong FREAEBIBTZEAR
REBETREER
RHERRESEERS
REXCAPITAL Corporate Hong Kong Arrangement of 2 Ordinary shares 100%
Management Limited EE administration services of HK$1 each
HMEELEERERAA for group companiesin 28 BREEIE T
Hong Kong 2 & B
REEREEDAIZH
TH R
REXCAPITAL Finance Limited ~ Hong Kong Money lending and 2,000,000 Ordinary 100%
HREEBERAA BB investment trading shares of HK$1 each
in Hong Kong 2,000,000 -
REBETERK BREEIETZ LR
REEE
REXCAPITAL Securities Hong Kong Securities dealing and 150,000,000 Ordinary 100%
Limited 5 margin financing shares of HK$1 each
BMEFHFARDA in Hong Kong 150,000,0000% * F X E A
REBETESFEER 1TETZERBR
FREE
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50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

50. XEMBATZHE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKE (CFE)

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-_TTNF+_A=+—HIEFE =

Place of Principal Particulars of issued Effective
incorporation/ activities and share capital/ interest
Name registration place of operation registered capital held
BRITRE,
=L SRS R R i B TEXBREXBE HEMERFE Fris B S
BREEER (FA) PRC Investment holding HK$230,000,000 100%
ARAE a3 in the PRC 230,000,000 7T
R BEETRERER
Shenzhen Sinodata PRC Provision of lottery RMB35,560,000 84.75%
Technology Co Ltd H machines and software AR #35,560,0007T
RINT B U Al system in the PRC
BRDA R BER‘EEHK
NS
RN BEEEIR R R PRC Provision of maintenance ~ RMB2,000,000 84.75%
BRAA i service for lottery AR #2,000,0007T
machines in the PRC
R BEREY R
BIER
Shenzhen Kingsail Software PRC Production of lottery RMB20,000,000 100%
Tech Co Ltd i machines in the PRC AR #20,000,0007T
RIS B A R BEEYRE
BRAF
REXLot Investment PRC Investment holding RMB30,000,000 100%
(Shenzhen) Co Ltd a2 in the PRC AR #30,000,0007T
RITHERHRE R BE# TR EER
BRAT
Beijing Xinan Sino-lottery PRC Provision of lottery RMB10,000,000 100%
Technology Co Ltd H printing service AR #10,000,0007T
LERELRFERE in the PRC
B A R B R R R ED R AR 7%
Guangzhou Latech PRC Production of lottery RMB10,000,000 90%
Technology Co Ltd H machines in the PRC AR#10,000,0007T

BN EEHRBR
BRAE
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50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. FEMB LA ZHEE (8)
(continued)

Place of Principal Particulars of issued Effective
incorporation/ activities and share capital/ interest
Name registration place of operation registered capital held
BRITRE,
=L SRS R R i B TEXBREXBE HEMERFE Fris B S
Beijing Lohowin Marketing PRC Lottery distribution and RMB1,280,000 60%
Co Ltd H marketing business AR 1,280,000
IEREEM R tHER in the PRC
BRADA R BHETTR RE KR
BEE2
R E R A4 {5 B B PRC Provision of marketing RMB 10,000,000 80%
BRADF H services for lottery AR #10,000,0007T

business in the PRC
RAPBEREYZEEBH

W5 R 5

FINTBEREBRA PRC Lottery distribution and RMB 10,000,000 100%
H marketing business A #10,000,0007T
in the PRC
R BHETTR RE KR

B ES

EREEEBER PRC Investment holding RMB5, 100,000 100%
BARDA e in the PRC AR #5,100,0007T

RABETRERR

FBAK (dLR) B PRC Provision of mobile RMB1,000,000 50%*
BRAA H value-added services AR#1,000,00070
for lottery business in
the PRC
KA BB R R E B R
FHIEERSE

EREISRBRE PRC Provision of mobile RMB1,000,000 50%*
BRAT H value-added services AR #1,000,00070
for lottery business
in the PRC
KA BB R R B R M
FHIBERS
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE-_TTNF+_A=+—HIEFE =

50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50.
(continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BB RKE (CFE)

TENBLARZFE (E)

Place of Principal Particulars of issued Effective
incorporation/ activities and share capital/ interest
Name registration place of operation registered capital held
BRITRE,
=L SR AR AL R i 2 TEXBREXBE HEMERFE Fris B S
SRR A R PRC Provision of mobile RMB1,010,000 50%*
BRADA & value-added services AR #1,010,0007T
for lottery business
in the PRC
RAPBEREEEBRE
FHRIZERS
MRS R R B R AR PRC Provision of mobile RMB2,000,000 50%*
BEREAAR H value-added services AR #2,000,00070
for lottery business
in the PRC
RAPBEREEEBRE
FHRIZERS
* These investee companies are regarded as subsidiary as the Group * AREEIZEHZERRERNB 2V BREEE

can exercise control over their financial and operating activities.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding at 31
December 2009 and 2008 at any time during both years.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would in the opinion

of the Directors result in particulars of excessive length.
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Five Year Financial Summary

EEUNKREE

The following is a summary of the results of the Group for the five

REXLot Holdings Limited WRBHERERAT

NTIRAEERE_TTNEF+ _A=+—HILAE

years ended 31 December 2009, which have been prepared on the FRECEEME ENIRBUBRERM 20 2 22
basis set out in note 2 to the financial statements. o
RESULTS ES
For the year ended 31 December
HZ+-A=1+—-HLEE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
“EEAE —ZETNEF —ZTtEF —ETRE —ZTRE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(=5)) (&575) (&5E5)
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(H15t) (W) (H1:2)
Turnover BER 1,272,069 1,173,000 412,661 144,746 41,588
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELADER, (&E) 450,237 342,215 220,010 41,633 (53,952)
Taxation R (34,082) (51,414) (26,369) (11,001) 3,252
Profit/(loss) before RETIEIER 2
non-controlling interests swA, Eﬂﬁ 416,155 290,801 193,641 30,632 (50,700)
Non-controlling interests RS 8,426 (23,160) (56,953) (19,462) -
424,581 267,641 136,688 11,170 (50,700)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
As at 31 December
R+=BA=+-—H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—BEAE ZTENF ZTTLF ZTEREF —ZTHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHETT FET
Total assets mEE 3,791,475 3,348,203 2,605,574 1,146,197 349,517
Total liabilities BefkE (344,804) (287,648) (164,171) (216,153) (234,945)
Total equity B 3,446,671 3,060,555 2,441,403 930,044 114,572
Note: As a result of the change in accounting policy for turnover in 2008, the Mt BREZZE ”/\@E‘iﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁ“%%ﬁz S EHBR At =
figures for 2007 to 2005 have been restated for comparison purpose. T FE_TTRFEZHTELEIAFELR-
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